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COUNTY OF DARE

PO Box 1000. MANTEO. NC 27954

DARE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Dare County Administration Building
954 Marshall C. Collins Dr., Manteo, NC

Monday, May 01, 2023

“HOW WILL THESE DECISIONS IMPACT OUR CHILDREN AND FAMILIES?”
Caring for Our Community — A Nurturing Place Where All Can Live and Grow.

AGENDA
CONVENE, PRAYER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Opening Remarks - Chairman's Update
Service Pins - May, 2023
Employee of the Month
Governor's Award for Volunteer Service
Public Comments
Proclamation Coastal NC Local Foods Week 2023
Proclamation for EMS Week: May 21-27, 2023
DHHS - Proclamation: Vulnerable Adult and Elder Abuse Awareness Months 2023
College of The Albemarle Welding Lab Gas Storage Building
The Villages at Old Wharf Road Cluster Home Development - Special Use Permit Application #3-2023

Zoning Text Amendment for the removal of Zoning Districts from Section-31.1 Cluster Home
Development Ordinance

Report on Sale of Series 2023A Limited Obligation Bonds
Amendment to Capital Project Ordinance for EMS Projects and Series 2023A LOBs
Resolution Supporting The Lost Colony

Consent Agenda

1. Approval of Minutes

Tax Collector's Report

Courthouse Computer Systems - Software License and Support Agreement
Dare County Disaster Debris Management Contract

DEQ Cost Share - Miss Katie 23/24 Dredging

. DEQ Cost Share - Walter Slough & the Crack

Board Appointments

o0 A wN

1. Juvenile Crime Prevention Council

2. Dare County Waterways Commission

3. Library Board - Dare

4. Upcoming Board Appointments
Commissioners' Business & Manager's/Attorney's Business

ADJOURN UNTIL 9:00 A.M. ON MAY 17, 2023
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Opening Remarks - Chairman's Update

Description

Dare County Chairman Robert Woodard will make opening remarks.

Board Action Requested

Informational Presentation

Item Presenter
Chairman Robert Woodard, Sr.



Service Pins - May, 2023

Description
Service pins for the month of May will be presented

Board Action Requested
None

Item Presenter
Robert Outten, County Manager



Employee of the Month

Description

The Employee of the Month Certification will be presented.

Board Action Requested

None

Item Presenter

To Be Determined
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Governor's Award for VVolunteer Service

Description
*Patricia Bourexis-nominated by Kathleen Brehony and Mary Ann Williams for her work with the Coastal

Humane Society
*Paula Donaghy-nominated by Cady Breslin for her work with the NC Aquarium on Roanoke Island

*Kaye White-nominated by Taylor McConnell for her work with the NC Aquarium on Roanoke Island

Board Action Requested
None - Presentation

Item Presenter
Shannon Toler Glaser, Friends of Youth-Program Coordinator
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Public Comments

Description

The Board of Commissioners encourages citizen participation and provides time on the agenda at every
regularly scheduled meeting for Public Comments. This is an opportunity for anyone to speak directly to the
entire Board of Commissioners for up to five minutes on any topic or item of concern.

Comments can be made at the Commissioners Meeting Room in Manteo (Administration Bldg., 954 Marshall
Collins Drive, Manteo) or through an interactive video link at the Fessenden Center Annex (47013 Buxton Back

Road, Buxton).

Board Action Requested
Hear Public Comments

Item Presenter
Robert Outten, County Manager



Proclamation Coastal NC Local Foods Week 2023

Description
Dee Furlough will present the proclamation and answer any Board questions.

Board Action Requested
Issue Proclamation after presentation.

Item Presenter
Dee Furlough, Area Agent, Family and Consumer Sciences



A PROCLAMATION
Coastal North Carolina Local Foods Week 2023

WHEREAS, Coastal North Carolina Local Foods Week is being celebrated throughout the region
June 11-17, 2023 in order to bring greater awareness of the nutritional, economic, and social benefits of
local foods in North Carolina; and

WHEREAS, healthy eating is vital to building a healthy regional food system in Dare County and
addressing obesity and related chronic illnesses can be strengthened through greater consumption of
fruits, vegetables, whole grains, and other locally produced foods; and

WHEREAS, Dare County is home to community gardens, farmers markets, fish houses, many
food-related businesses, and numerous community organizations which address issues related to food
production, nutrition, and food business development for Dare County residents; and

WHEREAS, agriculture and commercial fishing generates more than $24 million dollars in cash
receipts each year in Dare County, providing a large share of the economic output in the county; and

WHEREAS, Dare County is supportive of numerous community initiatives to develop, expand,
and strengthen a local food system which is accessible, resilient, environmentally compatible, and
inclusive of all citizens; and

WHEREAS, consumers, farmers, and fishermen benefit from the expansion of a local food
system which includes direct sales of food products from farmers and fishermen to consumers,
development of value-added food products by local businesses in Dare County, and institutional
purchases of locally-produced and caught food directly from farmers and fishermen; and

NOW, THEREFORE, Dare County Board of Commissioners does hereby proclaim June 11-17,
2023, as Local Foods Week in Dare County, and urges citizens of our community to support local
agriculture and purchase more high-quality, locally-produced foods, and learn about the benefits of
agriculture and local foods in Dare County.

This the 1% day of May, 2023.

Robert Woodard, Sr., Chairman
SEAL

Attest:

Cheryl C. Anby, Clerk to the Board
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Proclamation for EMS Week: May 21-27, 2023

Description
To designate the week of May 21-27, 2023, as Emergency Medical Services Week

This year's national theme for Emergency Medical Services Week:
"EMS: Where Emergency Care Begins"

Board Action Requested
Approve attached proclamation

Item Presenter
EMS Director, Chief Jennie Collins

11



2023 EMS WEEK PROCLAMATION
To Designate the Week of May 21-27, 2023 as Emergency Medical Services Week

WHEREAS; emergency medical services are a vital public service; and

WHEREAS, the members of emergency medical services teams are ready to provide
lifesaving care to those in need 24-hours a day, seven days a week; and

WHEREAS, access to quality emergency care dramatically improves the survival and recovery
rate of those who experience sudden illness or injury; and

WHEREAS, emergency medical services are the community’s medical care safety net, fills
gaps and provides important out-of-hospital care, including preventative medicine, access to
telemedicine, and performs life-saving and time-critical interventions; and

WHEREAS, emergency medical service personnel serve our community on the front-lines,
often with personal sacrifices of being away from their families on nights, weekends, and holidays, in
all types of weather environments, and face numerous personal risks and threats to ensure our
community receives the best care possible; and

WHEREAS, the emergency medical services system consists of first responders, emergency
medical technicians, paramedics, emergency medical dispatchers, administrators, emergency nurses,
emergency physicians, and other out-of-hospital medical care providers; and

WHEREAS, the members of emergency medical service teams engage in thousands of hours
of specialized training and continuing education to enhance their lifesaving skills; and

WHEREAS, it is appropriate to recognize the value and the accomplishments of emergency
medical service providers by designating Emergency Medical Services Week; and

WHEREAS, this year’s national theme for Emergency Medical Services Week is —
“EMS: Where Emergency Care Begins”

NOW, THEREFORE, Dare County Board of Commissioners, in recognition of this event,
does hereby proclaim the week of May 21-27, 2023 as EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES
WEEK.

This the 3rd day of May, 2023.

Robert Woodard, Sr., Chairman
SEAL

Attest:

Cheryl C. Anby, Clerk to the Board
12
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DHHS - Proclamation Vulnerable Adult and Elder Abuse Awareness Months 2023

Description
Dare County Department of Health & Human Services asks that the Board of Commissioners adopt the

proclamation recognizing May 14 - June 18, 2023, as Vulnerable Adult and Elder Abuse Awareness M

Board Action Requestel
Adopt Proclamation

Item Presentel
n/a
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PROCLAMATION
VULNERABLE ADULT AND ELDER ABUSE AWARENESS MONTHS 2023

WHEREAS, North Carolina joins the world in recognizing World Elder Abuse Awareness
Day every June 15; and

WHEREAS, protecting North Carolina’s vulnerable and older adults is a community
responsibility, and all citizens are charged under state law to report suspected abuse,
neglect, or exploitation to their local County Department of Social Services; and

WHEREAS, North Carolina’s vulnerable and older adults of all social, economic, racial,
and ethnic backgrounds may be targets of abuse, neglect, or exploitation which can occur
in families, long-term care settings, and communities; and

WHEREAS, in Fiscal Year 2022, there were 18,281 reports of abuse, neglect, or
exploitation of vulnerable and older adults made to North Carolina’s 100 County
Departments of Social Services; and

WHEREAS, in Fiscal Year 2022, there were 57 reports of abuse, neglect, or exploitation of
vulnerable and older adults made to Dare County Department of Social Services; and

WHEREAS, national and international research shows that abuse, neglect, and
exploitation of vulnerable and older adults is grossly underreported; and

WHEREAS, the State of North Carolina enacted the nation’s first elder abuse law, and
recognizes the need for a comprehensive system of protection for vulnerable and older
adults; and

WHEREAS, Mother’s and Father’s Days are national holidays intended to honor, respect,
and promote the dignity and well-being of our older citizens;

NOW THEREFORE, the Dare County Board of Commissioners do hereby proclaim
Mother’'s Day through Father’s Day, May 14 — June 18, 2023, as “VULNERABLE ADULT
AND ELDER ABUSE AWARENESS MONTHS” in Dare County and commend its
observance to all citizens.

This the day of May, 2023

Robert Woodard, Chairman

Attest:

Cheryl Anby, Clerk to the Board

14



1870

College of The Albemarle Welding Lab Gas Storage Building

Description

After the completion of the new COA - Dare Campus academic building, the college inquired about using
leftover project funds to construct a new welding lab gas storage building. Barnhill Contracting was the
Construction Manger for that project and has provided a quote to build the gas storage building. The quote is in
the amount of $380,563.00. There is enough funds leftover in the project budget to pay for the new building.

Board Action Requested
Approve the change order and authorize the County Manager to sign the change order

Item Presenter
Dustin Peele - Project and Procurement Manager
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BARNHILL
CONTRACTING
COMPANY

800 Tiffany Bivd. Suite 200
PO Box 7948
Rocky Mount, North Caroling 27804

252-823-1021 Fax: 252-977-7512

www.barnhilicontracting.com

Date:  April 5, 2023

Attn:  Mr. David Clawson
Dare County
P.O. Box 1000
Manteo, NC 27954

Re: Change Order Proposal — COP #041 R2
College of The Albematle — Dare County Campus

Dear Mr. Clawson:

Attached is Change Order Proposal, COP #041 R2 for the College of The Albemarle. This change order
was requested by Dare County and agreed by with Barnhill Contracting once we remobilized to Dare
County for another project in effort to reduce escalation and General Conditions. This change order is for
the Gas Storage Building located on the south side of the Professional Arts Building. This scope includes
the Permit PDF drawings attached. Temporary Power usage is assumed to use the existing facilities for
power cord usage during construction. This price includes a remaining permitting allowance carried in the
COA project. CMU wall construction with a complete functional space as per the drawings dated
6.10.2022 from Boomerang Design. The pricing has been updated with subcontractor input. The total
duration of construction is expected to be 10 weeks from NTP and receiving permits. Please note this
change order is not including any financials included in the COA project. If any contingencies need to be
credited, please let us know to apply.

Please review and advise if this will be accepted ASAP.
COP #041 R2 — PAB Gas Storage Building ADD: $380,563.00

If you have any further questions, please feel free to give me a call,
Sincerely,

Barnhill Contracting Company

Clint Hardison

Project Manager

Ce: File
Mr. Arthur VanderAa - BCC Mr. Matthew Edwards — BCC
Mr. Brad Martin - BCC Mi. Seth Stevens - BCC

Mr, Hunter Davenport — BCC
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CHANGE PROPQOSAL FORM

Project: College of The Albemnarle Proposal #: 41 R2
Contract: CM at Risk Projact #: 1108219
Contractor: Barnhill Contyaefing Date: 4.05.2023

Description of change:

his change order was requested by Dare County and agreed by with Bamhill Cantracting once we
remobilized to Dare County for anather project in effort to reduce escalation and General Conditions. This
change order is for the Gas Storage Building located on the south side of the Professional Aris Building.
This scope includes the Permit PDF drawings attached. Temporary Power usage is assumed to use the
existing facilities for power cord usage during construction. This price includes a remaining permitting
allowance carried in the COA project. CMU wall construction with a complete functional space as per the
drawings dated 6.10.2022 from Boomerang Design. The pricing has been updated with subcontractor
input, The total duration of construction is expected to be 10 weeks from NTP and receiving permits.
Please note this change order is not including any financials included in the COA project. If any
contingencies need to be credited, please let us know to apply.

Materials  (Attach ltemized Breakdown with Quantity, Unit Cost, Tatal $) SUBTOTALS
Total Direct Cost of Materials $0.00 w
Overhead & Profit on ltem $0.00
{15% maximum)
Sales Tax $0.00
Shipping & Transportation $0,00 %0.00
Labor {Attach itemized Breakdown of Manhaurs, Rate, Total §)
Total Manhours: MH @ hir, $0.00
Overhead & Profit on ltem $0.00
{15% maximum on straight labor cost} :
Payroll Taxes & Insurance 0.0% $0.00 . $0.00

Equipment Rental (Attach |temized Breakdown of Equipment, Hours, Rate, Totat )
Equipment Rental $0.00
Overhead & Profit $0.00
(8% maximum)

Subcontractor (Includes quetes with labor, maferial, & equipment backup)

BCC GC's See below See Below
Hatchell Concrete (Demo, Site Paving, Rebar, Footers, Slah) $24,515.00
WeatherTek Construction (CMU, Roof, Siding, Paint, Gutters, Chase) $87,350.00
ZBZ Plumbing (Gas Piping, trenching, $128,000.00
Martin Architectural {L ouvered Doors, FRP Doors, Frames, Louvers) $37,544.00
Pitt Electric Company $38,100.00
Seagars Fencing $3,183.00
Interior Signage Allowance $250.00
Other CM Fee {5.0%) $15,996.95
Gen. Liability Insurance {1.15%) $3,679.30
Perform & Payment Bond {0.95%) $3,039,42 e
Subguard Bonds on Subcontract Cost Only (1,20%) $3,839.27 $26,554.94
$346,493.94
GC Cost LS $34,069,00
Addittional Weeks Requested ance all permils are oblained 10 Subtotal of Proposal W

TOTAL OF CHANGE PROPOSAL $380,563.00

The Canstruction Manager agrees to perform the work outlined in this change propasal for the amount specified above and in
accordance with the Contract documents if the work s authorized by the Owner.

Pt aEE . el B

Gonstruction Manager's Sighature: Date: 4.05.2023

Approval Recommended by Design Consultant; Date:

Owner's Representative Approval: Date:
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The Villages at Old Wharf Road Cluster Home Development - Special Use Permit Application #3-2023

Description

Brad Alexander of Aria Construction & Development, Inc. has submitted a special use permit application to
construct a cluster home group development consisting of 60 single family dwellings on Parcel #025921000 on
Old Wharf Road, in Wanchese Village. At the April 3, 2023 Dare County Board of Commissioner meeting, a
detailed staff report and site plan for the proposal was provided (to include Site Plan Appendix B, House Plans
and Renderings). During the quasi-judicial hearing on April 3, 2023, sworn testimony was taken and applicant
exhibits were also submitted.

Board Action Requested
Deliberate and take appropriate action.

Item Presenter
Noah H. Gillam, Planning Director
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Zoning Text Amendment for the removal of Zoning Districts from Section-31.1 Cluster Home Developr
Ordinance

Description

In March the Dare County Board of Commissioners requested that the Planning Board revisit the Clust
Ordinance for possible revisions, and removal of districts from the Ordinance in response to a recent C
Home Development. A detailed staff report and associated recommend zoning amendment is attachec
cover sheet.(Zoning maps are on a separate link on Commissioner's webpage)

Board Action Requestel
Review the draft amendment and schedule public hearing on June 5, 2023 at 9:00 A.M.

Item Presentel
Noah H Gillam, Planning Director
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Report on Sale of Series 2023A Limited Obligation Bonds

Description
Please see the following Item Summary.

Board Action Requested
None

Item Presenter
David Clawson, Finance Director
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Amendment to Capital Project Ordinance for EMS Projects and Series 2023A LOBs

Description

This item is to amend the capital project ordinance for the Series 2023A LOBs per the final numbers from the
bond sale on April 20 as reported in the prior agenda item. This amendment also makes a change to the Dare
Medflight and Southern Shores projects to correct errors on the architect's additional costs worksheet. The total
project amounts do not change.

Board Action Requested
Adopt the amendment to the capital project ordinance.

Item Presenter
David Clawson, Finance Director
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County of Dare, North Carolina
Capital Project Ordinance
for
Series 2023A LOBs

BE IT ORDAINED as authorized by the Board of Commissioners of the County of Dare, North Carolinathat,
pursuant to Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following capital project
ordinance, for the Series 2023A LOBs, (formerly 2022C) originally adopted on 9/7/2021 and amended on
1/18/2022, 7/18/2022, 1/3/2023, 2/6/2023 and 3/6/2023, is hereby amended:

Section 1 This amendment is to adjust the revenue budgets to the results of the LOBs sale on April 20,
to change the bond costs of issuance for the same, and to correct for an error on the architect’s additional costs
worksheet.

Section 2 The following budget shall be conducted within the Capital Projects Fund (fund #61).
Section 3 The following revenues are changed as indicated as indicated:

Debt Proceeds S2022C LOBs 613090-470318-98734  ($1,725,000)  decrease
Reoffering premium 613090-471005-98734  $649,224 increase
Investment earnings on construction fund 613040-450100-98734  $1,185,686 increase
Section 4 The following appropriations for Dare MedFlight Station #7 are changed as indicated:
Station alerting & card security systems 615535-737409-60380  $86,924 increase
Owner’s contingency 615535-750000-60380  ($86,924) decrease
Section 5 The following appropriations for Southern Shores Station #7 are changed as indicated:
Station alerting & card security systems 615531-737409-60381  $82,861 increase
Owner’s contingency 615531-750000-60381  ($82,861) decrease
Section 6 The following amounts for costs of issuance, underwriter’s discount ($6 per bond), and
additional proceeds (rounding) are changed as indicated:

Costs of issuance, underwriter’s discount, etc.. 615490-545300-98734  $109,910 increase
Section 7 The legal level of budget control for EMS Phase 1, #°s 60380, 60381, and 60382, is the total

budgeted for all projects. Per the bond documents, to close in May 2023, all borrowed funds and non-arbitrage
interest earnings may be used for any Phase 1 project or for EMS Phase 2 projects. Per the annual budget
ordinance, the County Manager is authorized to execute change orders and/or amendments to construction
contracts in amounts up to $50,000, and to amend the related capital project ordinance using the project or
owner’s contingency or budget amounts available from other project line items. For EMS Phase 1 projects that
authority is extended to budget movement between projects/project numbers.

Section 8 The Finance Officer is directed to report the financial status of the project as a part of the
normal ongoing financial reporting process.

Section 9 Copies of this capital project ordinance shall be furnished to the Budget Officer, the
Finance Officer, and to the Clerk to the Board of Commissioners.

Adopted this 1% day of May, 2023.

Chairman, Board of Commissioners

[SEAL] Cheryl Anby, Clerk to the Board of Commissioner

share:/capital project ordinances/2023A LOBs/2023A LOBs CPO 5 1 2023.docx
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Dare EMS Projects #60360, 60367, & 60368
Series 2023 & 2024 Limited Obligation Bonds
Budget/Capital Project Ordinances

60382 S Shores
60381 KD Hills

60380 Dare MedFlight

Total Project

2/6/2022A 2/6/20238 3/6/2023 5/1/2023 Budget
LOBs Sale

Phase 1
613090 470318 98734 Debt proceeds -S23A LOBs S 3,445,015 $16,571,059 $ 18,758,926 S (1,725,000)| $ 37,050,000
613090 471005 98734 Reoffering premium - - 4,637,246 649,224 | S 5,286,470
613040 450100 98734 Interest earnings - - - 1,185,686 | S 1,185,686

Total revenues S 3,445,015 $16,571,059 $23,396,172 S 109,910 | S 43,522,156
615531 710900 60360 Architectural services S 3,082,429 S (1,245,155) $ (1,837,274) S - S -
615531 710912 60360 Architect expenses 10,000 - (10,000) - S -
615531 710101 60360 Surveys & geotechnical 98,937 (59,536) (39,401) - S -
615531 737500 60360 CM at Risk preconstruction fee 253,649 (213,065) (40,584) - S -
615535 710900 60380 Architectural services - 667,964 - - S 667,964
615535 710101 60380 Surveys & geotechnical - 32,197 - - S 32,197
615535 710911 60380 Inspections & construction testi - 85,000 - - S 85,000
615535 737406 60380 FF&E - 156,750 (22,755) - S 133,995
615535 737409 60380 Wiring, alerting, & security - 110,424 42,588 86,924 | $ 239,936
615535 525401 60380 Builder's risk - 15,000 - - S 15,000
615535 737517 60380 Utilities installation - 35,000 - - S 35,000
615535 737002 60380 Owner's costs - 35,000 (10,000) - S 25,000
615535 737526 60380 Fiber - 72,000 - - S 72,000
615535 737520 60380 Fuel farm & pumps - 226,500 - - S 226,500
615535 750000 60380 Owner's contingency - 263,288 (20,721) (86,924)| S 155,643
615535 737504 60380 Guaranteed maximum price - 7,834,370 - - S 7,834,370
615535 737001 60380 Sales tax refunds - (79,911) 227 - S (79,684)
615535 737501 60380 Water, sewer & other fees - - 15,430 - S 15,430
615535 737509 60380 Propane & other - - 12,000 - S 12,000
615535 737451 60380 Signage - - 35,214 - S 35,214
615535 737500 60380 Preconstruction fee allocated - - 55,524 0| $ 55,524
615531 710900 60381 Architectural services - 577,191 - - S 577,191
615531 710101 60381 Surveys & geotechnical - 27,339 - - S 27,339
615531 710911 60381 Inspections & construction testi - 50,000 - - S 50,000
615531 737406 60381 FF&E - 147,000 11,118 - S 158,118
615531 737409 60381 Wiring, alerting, & security - 106,362 48,750 82,861 | S 237,973
615531 525401 60381 Builder's risk - 15,000 - - S 15,000
615531 737517 60381 Utilities installation - 15,000 35,000 - S 50,000
615531 737002 60381 Owner's costs - 25,000 - - S 25,000
615531 737526 60381 Fiber - - - - S -
615531 737520 60381 SS storage building - 91,565 - - S 91,565
615531 750000 60381 Owner's contingency - 244,325 (16,982) (82,861)| S 144,482
615531 737504 60381 Guaranteed maximum price - 7,342,647 - - S 7,342,647
615531 737001 60381 Sales tax refunds - (74,896) (112) - S (75,008)
615531 737501 60381 Water, sewer & other fees - - 15,430 - S 15,430
615531 737509 60381 Propane & other - - 10,000 - S 10,000
615531 737451 60381 Signage - - 31,549 - S 31,549
615531 737500 60381 Preconstruction fee allocated - - 52,039 - S 52,039
615531 737008 60382 Demolition - 68,700 - - S 68,700
615531 710900 60382 Architectural services - - 1,837,274 - S 1,837,274
615531 710912 60382 Architect expenses - - 10,000 - S 10,000
615531 710101 60382 Surveys & geotechnical - - 39,401 - S 39,401
615531 710911 60382 Inspections & construction testi - - 100,000 - S 100,000
615531 737406 60382 FF&E - - 666,818 - S 666,818
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615531 737409 60382 Wiring, alerting, & security - - 516,942 - S 516,942
615531 737517 60382 Utilities installation - - 25,000 - $ 25,000
615531 737002 60382 Owner's costs - - 35,000 - S 35,000
615531 750000 60382 Owner's contingency - - 642,571 - S 642,571
615531 737504 60382 Guaranteed maximum price - - 20,612,812 - S 20,612,812
615531 737001 60382 Sales tax refunds - - (212,796) - S (212,796)
615531 737501 60382 Water, sewer & other fees - - 86,833 - S 86,833
615531 737509 60382 Propane & other - - 12,000 - S 12,000
615531 737451 60382 Signage - - 65,897 - S 65,897
615531 737500 60381 Preconstruction fee allocated - - 146,086 - S 146,086 | S 24,652,538
615490 545300 98734 Costs of issuance & UW discoun - - 445,294 109,910 | $ 555,204 | $ 555,204
Total expenditures S 3,445,015 $16,571,059 $23,396,172 S 109,910 S 43,522,156
Phase 2
613090 470318 98737 Debt proceeds - S23B LOBs S 992,228 S 992,228
Total revenues S 992,228 S - S - S - S 992,228
615531 710900 60367 Architectural services S 665,332 S 665,332
615531 710101 60367 Surveys & geotechnical 73,247 73,247
615531 737500 60367 CM at Risk preconstruction fee 253,649 253,649
Total expenditures S 992,228 S - S - S - S 992,228
Phase 3
613090 470318 98738 Debt proceeds - S24A LOBs S 332,932 S 332,932
Total revenues S 332,932 $ - S - S - S 332,932
615531 710900 60368 Architectural services S 332,932 S 332,932
615531 710101 60368 Surveys & geotechnical - -
615531 737500 60368 CM at Risk preconstruction fee - -
Total expenditures S 332,932 S - S - S - S 332,932
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SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

County of Dare, North Carolina
Limited Obligation Bonds, Series 2023A
Final Pricing Schedules

Dated Date 05/05/2023
Delivery Date 05/05/2023
Sources:
Bond Proceeds:
Par Amount 37,050,000.00
Premium 5,286,469.50
42,336,469.50
Other Sources of Funds:
Project Fund - Investment Earnings 1,185,686.32

43,522,155.82

Uses:

Project Fund Deposits:

Project Fund - Cost of Investments 41,497,616.68
Project Fund - Investment Earnings 1,185,686.32
Project Fund - Cash Deposit 283,649.00
42,966,952.00

Delivery Date Expenses:
Cost of Issuance 325,000.00
Underwriter's Discount 229,681.51
554,681.51

Other Uses of Funds:

Additional Proceeds 522.31

43,522,155.82

Note: Total Cost of Project Fund Investments includes initial cash deposit of $46.72

Apr 20, 2023 3:18 pm Prepared by Piper Sandler & Co. - SRS Page 1
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Resolution Supporting The Lost Colony

Description

See attached resolution in support of The Roanoke Island Historical Association and their continued production
of the "longest running symphonic drama™ The Lost Colony.

Board Action Requested
Adopt resolution

Item Presenter
Chairman Bob Woodard, Sr.
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Resolution
Supporting The Lost Colony

WHEREAS, The Lost Colony has been the Outer Banks’ most prominent Heritage Tourism attraction
for 85 years; and

WHEREAS, summer productions of The Lost Colony at the Waterside Theatre on Roanoke Island
have entertained millions of visitors; and

WHEREAS, the mission of the Roanoke Island Historical Association is to celebrate and depict the
first English settlement in America on Roanoke Island and the birth of the first English child on these
shores; and

WHEREAS, The Lost Colony, based on a screenplay by North Carolina’s Paul Green, first was
performed in 1937, in the depths of the Depression, and President Franklin D. Roosevelt was among
those who viewed the production that summer; and

WHEREAS, the show has been performed continuously for 85 years, interrupted only by World War
I1 and the Covid epidemic; and

WHEREAS, The Lost Colony should be an important part of our nation’s 250" anniversary
celebration in 2026; and

WHEREAS, we eagerly anticipate the 100" anniversary of The Lost Colony in 2037, just fourteen
years from now; and

WHEREAS, The Lost Colony remains a vital and valuable part of the life and history of our
community, Dare County and the entire Outer Banks;

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Dare County Board of Commissioners expresses its
sincere thanks and appreciation to the Board of Directors of the Roanoke Island Historical Association
for its hard work, and we pledge our continuing support for The Lost Colony.

This the 1t day of May, 2023.

Robert Woodard, Sr., Chairman

Attest:

Cheryl C. Anby, Clerk to the Board
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Consent Agenda

Description

1. Approval of Minutes

2. Tax Collector's Report

3. Courthouse Computer Systems Software License and Support Agreement
4. Dare County Disaster Debris Management Contract

5. DEQ Cost Share - Miss Katie 23/24 Dredging

6. DEQ Cost Share - Walter Slough & the Crack

Board Action Requested
Take Appropriate Action

Item Presenter
Robert Outten, County Manager
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Approval of Minutes

Description
The Board of Commissioners will review and approve their previous minutes which follow this page.

Board Action Requested
Approve Previous Minutes

Item Presenter
Robert Outten, County Manager
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MINUTES

DARE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
Dare County Administration Building, Manteo, NC

5:00 p.m., April 3, 2023

Commissioners present: Chairman Robert Woodard, Sr., Vice Chairman Wally Overman
Rob Ross, Steve House, Danny Couch, Ervin Bateman

Commissioners absent:  Jim Tobin (excused)

Others present: County Manager/Attorney, Robert Outten
Deputy County Manager/Finance Director, David Clawson
Master Public Information Officer, Dorothy Hester
Clerk to the Board, Cheryl Anby

A full and complete account of the Board of Commissioners meeting is archived on a video
available for viewing on the Dare County website www.darenc.gov. A brief synopsis follows.

At 5:00 p.m. Chairman Woodard called to order the regularly scheduled meeting with
appropriate prior public notice having been given. He invited Rev. Tom Wilson to share a
prayer, and then he led the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag. It was announced Room 168 in
the administrative building was open for overflow participants to the meeting. Chairman
Woodard asked for continued prayer for Commissioner Tobin and his wife.

ITEM 1 — OPENING REMARKS — CHAIRMAN'’S UPDATE
Following is a brief outline of the items mentioned by Chairman Woodard:

e Requested the Board move Agenda Items 5-9 to be heard before Item 4:
MOTION
Commissioner Ross motioned that Agenda Items 5-9 be heard before Item 4.
Commissioner Bateman seconded the motion.
VOTE: AYES unanimous.

e At the south end of the old Manns Harbor Bridge was an area that Andy DelVillar and his
wife had cut back and removed fallen trees, relocated sand along with the removal and
trimming of vegetation. He presented Mr. DelVillar with a certificate of appreciation for his
extensive volunteer work in the creation of Pineapple Beach on Roanoke Island

ITEM 2 — PRESENTATION OF COUNTY SERVICE PINS
1) Julie Cabana, In-Home Service Aid, received a 10-year pin.
2) Charlene Garrish, Emergency Medical Tech Lieutenant, received a 15-year pin.
3) Yvette Pollock, Day Care Service Coordinator, was recognized for her 25-year pin.
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ITEM 3 - EMPLOYEE OF THE MONTH — April 2023

Crystal Ambrose received the Employee of the Month award from Chuck Lycett who
described her skills as an income maintenance supervisor for the Economic Services Unit of
Social Services. Mr. Lycett stated she committed to the ongoing development of her team.

Clerk has placed the minutes in the order the Items were addressed by the Board.

ITEM 5 - BROADBAND - UPDATE

Eric Collins, Director of Government Affairs with Charter Communications, provided an
update. He shared the service areas of his broadband services. There was an internet assist
program to aid customers with lower incomes to receive affordable service beginning at
$19.95. Over the next 2-3 years the infrastructure would be upgraded with “high split”
allowing for a more reliable system. Chairman Woodard asked about unincorporated villages
on Hatteras Island, which had a single optic line by Brightspeed. Weather issues had caused
the area to lose 911 communications for long durations. He asked if Charter had the ability to
provide service without relying on Brightspeed'’s fiber. After a brief discussion, Mr. Collins
said he would check with field officers and provide an update to the County Manager.

ITEM 6 — PROCLAMATION — “WEEK OF THE YOUNG CHILD”

Children & Youth Partnership for Dare County presented a proclamation supporting “Week of
the Young Child” for April 1-7, 2023.

MOTION

Commissioner House and Vice-Chairman Overman motioned to adopt the proclamation.
Commissioner Couch seconded the motion.

VOTE: AYES unanimous.

ITEM 7 — PROCLAMATION — CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION MONTH

Children & Youth Partnership and Dare’s Social Services presented a proclamation to
recognize the month of April as child abuse prevention month.

MOTION

Vice-Chairman Overman motioned to adopt the proclamation.

Commissioners Bateman and House seconded the motion.

VOTE: AYES unanimous.

*Mr. Nettles presented these items in reverse order.

*ITEM 8 — DARE COUNTY TOURISM BOARD REQUEST CONSENT EXPENDITURE
FROM LONG TERM UNAPPROPRIATED GRANT FUND LINE ITEM

Lee Nettles, Executive Director of Outer Banks Visitors Bureau, presented this item to the
Board.

MOTION

Commissioner House motioned to consent for expenditures totaling $75,000 from line item
4585 for a Long-Term Unappropriated Grant Award to Roanoke Island Historical Association.
Vice-Chairman Overman seconded the motion.

VOTE: AYES unanimous
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*ITEM 9 — DARE COUNTY TOURISM BOARD REQUEST CONSENT EXPENDITURE
FROM SHORT TERM RESTRICTED FUND LINE ITEM 5160

Mr. Nettles also presented this item for area firework awards to Avon Property Owners
Association, Kill Devil Hills, Manteo and Nags Head.

MOTION

Commissioner Bateman motioned to consent for expenditures totaling $55,000.00 from line
item 5160 for July 4™ Fireworks Grant Awards.

Commissioner House seconded the motion.

VOTE: AYES unanimous

ITEM 4 — PUBLIC COMMENTS

At 5:53 p.m. the Manager outlined the procedure for making public comments in Manteo and
via the video link to the Fessenden Center Annex in Buxton. Mr. Outten explained Item 10
was a quasi-judicial hearing for the applicant to prove they had met the conditions of the
ordinance. They would present evidence for those requirements as sworn evidence. He
outlined the statutory requirements for those with “standing” to testify in the hearing. He also
answered why the ordinance could not just be changed to stop the development (G.S. 143-
755) and why a moratorium could not be instituted based upon N.C. G.S. 160D-107.

Following is a summary of all citizen remarks made in Manteo. There were no
comments from Buxton.

1. Justin Bateman from Wanchese asked the developer why he wanted to build the
project after all of the public pushback. He opposed the development.

2. Johnnie Robbins, Jr. stated Wanchese was more like it was than any other place in
Roanoke Island. He opposed the appearance of the planned project.

3. Tom Stewart was in support of Mr. Alexander’s project. He was pleased that workforce
housing was a priority with the Board.

4. Rex Mann opposed the cluster homes. He felt the sewer systems were inferior in the
development. He wanted to work together to find a better solution.

5. Amy Phillips stated there already was high traffic and not enough grocery stores and
amenities to preserve the quality of life on the island.

6. Sybil Ross raised concern over the use of the Yorktown aquifer, stating the area’s
water sources were limited.

7. Joey Daniels stated Wanchese’s zoning changed without residents being in the
process. He asked the Board to look at the future and return the zoning the way it was.

8. Laurie Tillett spoke against the development. He stated putting 60 trailers on stilts was
not pretty at all. He asked the Board to change the zoning back and lessen the impact.

9. Jackie Beasley had no additional comment but voiced she agreed with everyone.

10.Janine Emery said it was time to move forward with housing. She supported the
development for quality housing for teachers, nurses, EMT and support staff.

11.Pattie Callum was concerned about the environmental impact of the growth of the
island. She opposed the development.

12.Mitchell Bateman offered a prayer for Commissioner Tobin and his wife. A great deal
of effort was placed with the Wanchese zoning model. He opposed the development.

13.Ken Mann was concerned about traffic and asked what constituted affordable housing.
He was concerned with growth in an area that did not have an EMS station.
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14. Amy Stone said housing needs had not changed since 1983. She disagreed the
development could be considered affordable. Wanchese was not the solution.

15.Carson Creef said there was one way in and out and the traffic will be too much.
There was no guarantee who would reside there to really benefit the village workforce.

16.Kobe Beasley stated Walker Park had been named after his grandfather. He loved
Wanchese and asked for no cluster homes in his hometown.

17.Lindsey Kee was concerned how the emergency services would serve the area and
stated EMS was not equipped to handle this added development.

18.Craig Parker said Wanchese had a problem with the EMS 911 service. He suggested
the development be built in other areas owned by Dare County.

19.Chetty Parker was concerned about the amount of traffic in the area with children
nearby. He asked the Board to reconsider the development.

20.Lorraine Tillett thanked the Board for returning the zoning plan back to the Planning
Board and asked for a delay on their vote. They wanted single family homes.

21.Sandra Barile read the 2009 Dare County Land Use Plan for Wanchese and stated 60
stilt homes on 10.5 acres without overflow parking would change Wanchese forever.

22.Ralph Barile stated this development would change Wanchese forever. He asked the
Board to have Mr. Alexander negotiate changes to the development.

23.Pixie Wescott stated how caring Wanchese residents were to one another’s problems
and added Wanchese was a community without adequate ambulance service.

24.Britton Shackleford recited the quote at the top of the agenda. He stated there were
people who commuted for their jobs every day.

25.Robin Mann said Wanchese chose to be a unique and novel community. She
requested the development not be approved and warned of a Manns Harbor request.

BOARD RECESS AT 7:30 P.M. — MEETING RECONVENED AT 7:45 P.M.

26.Nan Willis gave her long family history. Years ago, the Indians were driven away and
now Wanchese long-time residents and their way of life were being driven away.
27.Alison Beacham lived near where the development was proposed. She stated a
cluster housing project was polar opposite to what Wanchese desired in zoning.
28.Lynn Dauvis lived next door to the proposed development. He looked at the plans and
there are septic tanks close to his home. He asked the Board to reconsider.
29.Nancy Gray wanted to encourage everyone that change was possible. She added the
community was at a special place where we could plot our course in history.
30.Brimage Silver stated the applicant was willing to add deed restrictions to prevent the
likelihood of the homes becoming vacation rentals. An HOA plan should be presented.
31.Mickie Daniels wanted to talk with the Board about the water quality of the area.
32.Will Brooks wanted to remind everyone that the Board was not our enemy. When
tensions rose, it was easy to forget and asked the Board to do the right thing.
33.Dillon Silver, a property owner in Wanchese, stated she drove five hours to share her
feelings that she opposed the development.
34.Jade Midgett opposed development and voiced concerned about the gate for the fire
department. The land was low and the road was not maintained.
35.Kathryn Fagan stated zoning was supposed to be noticed and this was not properly
noticed. She stated the quality of community would be lost with this development.
36.Alyson Flynn of NC Coastal Federation requested that the Board reconsider the storm
water plan to prevent chronic flooding in the area.
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The County Manager closed Public Comments at 8:24 p.m.

ITEM 10 - THE VILLAGES AT OLD WHARF ROAD CLUSTER HOME DEVELOPMENT -
SPECIAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION #3-2023 (Att. # 1)

This agenda item began at 8:24 p.m. and was handled as a quasi-judicial proceeding. Mr.
Outten explained the Board could only use the evidence presented at this hearing to make
their decision. If the Board expressed an opinion or made a decision before the meeting,
then they were not allowed to hear the evidence.

Commissioner Bateman addressed the Board and explained that he would have to recuse
himself. He stated he had an opinion regarding the development and had reached out to Mr.
Alexander, therefore he could not participate in the hearing or a decision of the matter.
MOTION

Chairman Woodard made a motion to recuse Commissioner Bateman.

Vice-Chairman Overman seconded the motion.

VOTE: AYES unanimous.

Commissioner Bateman left the meeting at 8:26 p.m.

Mr. Outten asked Noah Gillam, Planning Director, if he had presented the packet of evidence
to each Commissioner and to the applicant, as statute required. Mr. Gillam affirmed he had
done so. Mr. Gillam explained the applicant, Aria Construction & Development, Inc., had
submitted a special use permit for a cluster home development on Old Wharf Road in
Wanchese. Cluster homes were permitted subject to the review of the Board. Lloyd C. Smith,
Jr., Esq. presented himself as the applicant’s counsel. He called Noah Gillam as his first
witness and the Clerk placed him under oath.

Questions to Noah Gillam by Mr. Smith:

Q. Would you state your name, where you reside and who you are employed by?

A. Noah Hardy Gillam, resident of Manteo, employed by Dare County as the Planning
Director. My duties are to administer the ordinances of Dare County.

Q. Have you had occasion to become involved with this project known as Old Wharf Road?
A. Yes sir.

Q. What has your involvement been?

A. As the Planning Director, the application was submitted to me and | reviewed it before it
was submitted to the Planning Board in a preliminary forum and again tonight for a quasi-
judicial proceeding.

Q. Did you receive certain exhibits?

A. Yes sir.

Q. And have marked them 1-117?

A. Yes sir.

Q. That includes the application, letter from property owner, site plan, house plan, letter from
George Wood?

A. Yes sir.

Q. What was the purpose of putting that letter in the exhibits?

A. After Mr. Alexander had the property surveyed, we had received notification from the Army
Corps of Engineers that there was a potential for wetlands on the property and the applicant,
Mr. Alexander, would have to have someone perform a wetland delineation on the property.
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And that is what Mr. Woods’ letter states, that there are certain pockets of wetlands that they
believed they could fill through Army Corps’ permit.

Q. Exhibit #6 appears to be the Dare County Fire Marshal comments?

A. Yes sir.

Q. What was the purpose of soliciting those comments?

A. Typically in any type of review of a site plan of this nature, or a subdivision, the fire
marshal reviews to make sure it meets the compliance of the North Carolina fire code.

Q. And what were his conclusions?

A. That in review of the layout of the plan that it met those requirements.

Q. And you attached copies of Section 22-31.1 and Section 22-27.7 of the zoning ordinance?
A. Yes sir.

Q. And what was the purpose of doing that?

A. So that the Board in their review tonight would have the ordinances in front of them that
listed out the requirements that a cluster home would have to adhere to.

Q. And has each of those requirements been met?

A. Yes sir.

Q. And the other three exhibits are concerning notices which you posted on property, notice
of the hearing and notice that was posted on the website?

A. Correct, some of the notices were mailed to the property owner and to the adjoining
property owners.

Mr. Smith: At this time, we introduce the exhibits which were already given to the Board 1-11.
Q. Mr. Gillam, in looking at the site plan, the requirements for cluster home development
requires some setbacks?

A. Yes sir.

Q. And does this development meet those setbacks as shown on the engineered plan?

A. 22-31.1 requires that the cluster home meet the applicable setbacks for the zoning district
in which it is in.

Q. And does it do that?

A. Yes.

Q. And it also has requirements concerning the amount of coverage of the entire tract is that
correct?

A. That is correct.

Q. And | believe it is 30%, is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. And does this cover less than the 30% of the entire tract?
A. Yes sir.

Q. So that in that sense it also complies, is that right?

A. Yes.

Q. Have you had occasion with the fire marshal to examine the site drawings concerning the
roads and the ability of emergency equipment to get into this project?

A. Yes, his comments provided there was never a question of access. He listed in his
comments where the secondary access being keyed to the Roanoke Island Volunteer Fire
Department lock box system, which is a key that they have to access gates in this situation.
Through the process of him reviewing it and conversations with him, it met those
requirements.

Q. Even without the secondary gate it meets the requirements?
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A. | can’t answer that. That would be a question for the fire marshal.

Q. He is here?

A. Yes sir.

Q. While we are talking about this, this is a blown-up version of the site plan, do you
recognize it?

A. Yes sir.

Q. I will mark this as petitioner’s exhibit 12. Is this the gated area we talked about on the
secondary road?

A. Yes sir.

Q. And explain to the Board who would have a key to that.

A. The Roanoke Volunteer Fire Department.

Q. And is that standard procedure?

A. Yes, | have seen it in other places where there is a gate involved.

Q. And this is the main drag to the proposed building development?

A. Yes sir.

The Board had no further questions of Mr. Gillam and would recall him if necessary. The Chairman asked if
there was someone representing the community present to ask any questions. No one came forward.

Mr. Smith called the applicant.

Q. State your name.

A. Brad Davenport Alexander.

Q. And where do you reside?

A. I reside in Creswell.

Q. What is your relationship with the petitioner, Aria Construction & Development, Inc.?

A. Owner and CEO of Aria Construction.

Q. Does Aria Construction hold any license for the state of North Carolina?

A. Yes, | have an unlimited commercial license.

Q. What does that mean?

A. It means | can build residential and commercial with unlimited money value placed on it.
Q. Who is the qualifier for the corporation?

A. lam.

Q. You are familiar with the project at The Village of Old Wharf Road, right?

A. Yes, | am.

Q. How are you familiar with it?

A. I am the designer with House Engineering. We put it all together and tried to do something
we thought that Dare County’s community needed for housing for employees.

Q. And | have shown Mr. Gillam what we marked as Petitioner’s Exhibit 12. Are you familiar
with this site map that we have blown up so we can look at various aspects of it and other
maps?

A. Yes, | am.

Q. And who was that site map prepared by?

A. House Engineering.

Q. And where are they located?

A. In Southern Shores.

Q. And are they a firm of professional engineers?

A. Yes, they are.
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Q. And whom do you deal with there?

A. Rick House and David Neff.

Q. And there has been already introduced a statement from the landowner concerning your
ability to have this hearing, but did you also get an option and an extension on the option for
this property

A. Yes.

Q. I want to show you Mr. Alexander what | have marked as Petitioners Exhibit No. 13 and
ask if you recognize it.

A. Yes, | do.

Q. What is it?

A. An Offer to Purchase Agreement and the amended due diligence.

Q. | offer Exhibit 13 to the Board. Now | will show you what | will mark as Exhibit No. 14.
Would you tell the Commissioners what this is?

A. This is an Amended Agreement for the due diligence where the procedure has taken
longer than we originally thought and so we had to have the due diligence extended.

Q. And what was it extended to?

A. June 16, 2023

Q. Mr. Alexander if the special use permit is issued, do you or your company intend to go
forward with the purchase?

A. Yes, we do.

Q. What do you intend to build out there?

A. We are going to build 36 two-bedroom houses and 24 three-bedroom houses.

Q. Do you recognize Exhibit 157

A. Yes, | do.

Q. And can you tell the Commissioners what that is?

A. The top part is the actual blueprint of the house plus the elevations of each. The bottom
part is a rendering showing the ...looking down each cul-de-sac what it will look like at the
completion of the project.

Q. And how many three-bedroom houses will there be and how many two-bedroom houses
will there be?

A. There would be twenty-four 3 bedrooms and thirty-six 2 bedrooms.

Q. How will these houses be built? What kind of material will they be built out of?

A. These houses are all 2 x 6 construction for the walls. They are shotgun style houses. They
have been referred to as trailers but they are far from trailers. We build anything from three
bedroom to twenty-bedroom houses on the Outer Banks and they will be built to the same
specifications as what we built those houses.

Q. I don’t have anything to point with but can you tell me what this here is a design of?

Q. Rather than the long shotgun style house and just having a solid wall down the side, |
decided to put the gable at each end so it would give some character to the houses. So, you
will see the three windows with transom windows over top and they will all be facing the main
road going into the development with a reverse plan on the opposite side of the road. As you
are driving through the neighborhood, you will see this side of the house and gives it a lot
more character.

Q. The ordinance itself requires that there be a number of parking places for cars, | believe it
is one for each bedroom. Is that your understanding?

A. That's correct.
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Q. And how are these houses designed to accommodate that requirement?

A. Every house has the capability of two parking places underneath the house on non-
pervious concrete surfaces and then two cars on the exterior in the front of the house that will
be a rock gravel drive.

Q. So you intend to comply with the ordinance as far as having two impervious places for
each vehicle as required.

A. Yes.

Q. Are you familiar with the request and potential discussion at the zoning board meeting
discussing covenants on the property?

A. Yes.

Q. What is the term as you understand it in the ordinance for long-term as the ordinance is
written now?

A. It's thirty-one days or more. Someone spoke at the planning board if | would be willing to
have it six months or more and | have no problem with that. And there have been a lot of
statements that | am planning on renting all of the properties and that is not true. | do retain
the right to rent some if they don't sell as fast as | want them to. Before we start they will be
preconstruction pricing placed on them to start selling them.

Q. What will be the pre-construction price?

A. | think we are going to start at $299,000 on 2 bedrooms and $329,000 on 3 bedrooms.

Q. Are you aware of any requirement in the ordinance that you price these at any particular
level?

A. No. There is not anything that | know of. We are just trying to get it in the ballpark of.....to
my knowledge it will be the cheapest price in Dare County of any two or three-bedroom new
construction at the present time.

Q. Are you familiar with construction in Dare County

A. I am very knowledgeable.

Q. There is a limit of size that these houses can be, the limit being 1,200 square feet. Do you
know the size for the two-bedroom house?

A. It would be 960 sg. feet.

Q. How about the three-bedroom houses?

A. It would be 1,120 sq. feet.

Q. I'want to return for a minute to the construction of these houses. Of course, this is just to
get the special use permit, but do these houses have to be built to any other standards if the
special use permit is allowed.

A. They have to be built to the same standards of any other house in Dare County.

Q. How about wind speeds for coastal counties which | believe is 140 mph, is that correct?
A. They will be built to 140 mph wind code.

Q. Are you familiar with the lot coverage on this plan?

A. Yes, | am.

Q. How many acres approximately are there Mr. Alexander?

A. Approximately 10.5 acres.

Q. And what is going to the lot coverage with the asphalt and the houses?

A. It will be less than 30%.

Q. And | am going to ask your engineer these questions, but in your opinion do these houses
all meet the setback requirements and the distance requirements of this county’s ordinances
as written tonight?
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A. Yes, they do.

Q. Who will own the houses up until a certain number of them are sold? The unsold lots |
should say?

A. Aria Construction will.

Q. Is there a number when according to other laws that it has to revert to some type of
association?

A. Well at 51%, up until that point Aria Construction will be responsible for all maintenance of
everything in the neighborhood. At 51%, at that time we have the right to turn it over to the
neighborhood association.

Chairman Woodard:

Q. Mr. Alexander, | believe it was Item 12 that showed the eastern part of the property with a
gate. Is that correct Mr. Smith?

Mr. Smith: Yes sir.

Q. Mr. Alexander, is this considered a gated community?

A. No it is not.

Q. Then why do we have to have a gate?

A. That is not actually an access for the community. We put that in there extra for the fire
department in case they needed a second entrance coming in for emergency situations. And
it would be lock boxed with a key that is universal to all the fire departments.

Q. You answered this question, but | want it on record again. It's been said numerous times
mobile homes on stilts. A mobile home as far as | know of at least in my dealings over the
years is pretty much a metal structure type of unit that is premanufactured. You have stated
that you will built these... this is no how no way a mobile home on stilts is that correct?

A. They are not mobile homes.

Q. You will build these just like you build a regular beach box for lack of a better term, right?
A. They will all be stick-built houses.

Q. Stick-built houses just like we do all over the county?

A. That's correct.

Q. I believe according to the conditional use permit both the two-bedroom 960 sq. feet, that’s
roughly 40 square feet below what’s special use permit, is that correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. 1,120 square feet three-bedroom is roughly 80 square feet below what the special use
permit calls for is that correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Fire walls, will there be fire walls in between units?

A. No there will not be fire walls between units.

Q. That’s not code?

A. No.

Q. Will they be hard wired with smoke detectors.

A. Yes.

Q. They will be... with backup battery operated?

A. Yes. They will be exactly like the construction of any other house built in Dare County.

Q. And | believe you said that there was going to be an HOA.

A. Yes.

Q. And you will have the right to turn it over once 51% | believe is completed?

A. That is correct.
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Q. I was concerned about the size of the units — | would like to have one of those 960. | had a
house in Kill Devil Hills for thirty-seven years with 720 square feet. The cost to purchase |
think is reasonable. What are the rents going to be? You mentioned you potentially had some
possibility of rents? Do you have an idea right now what those rents might go for?

A. Based on rental property in Dare County in the surrounding area here, they would
probably be somewhere between $1,800 to $2,200 a month.

Chairman Woodard warned the audience to remain respectful during the hearing and
continued his questions to Mr. Alexander.

Q. At any time Mr. Alexander ... let me back up, you have promoted these from day one as
market rate housing, have you not?

A. Yes, | have.

Q. Thank you. You have not stated that this will be essential living or affordable living type
housing. You have stated from day one it is market-rate housing?

A. Yes. There are lots of rumors floating out there what this neighborhood is going to be and
90% of them are false.

Q. Right. You have been gracious enough to say that you would be willing to do a six-month
lease. Would you so far as much as say that you would consider an annual lease?

A. | would.

Q. On the east side, it was hard for me and our residents out there that have seen copies of
this. On the east side it doesn’t appear that it's as much vegetation as the north, west and
south sides of that property. Is that correct?

A. It should be basically the same all the way around. The objective is we want to plant a
buffer zone so when it gets in and gets grown as well the neighbors on the outside can’t look
in and the neighbors on the inside don’t want to look out. So, we were going to make a buffer
zone so that takes care of that.

Q. How about the existing trees on the lot that are the closest to the ingress and egress?

A. Any of the trees that are in that buffer zone that are native trees, oaks or things like that,
other than the tall pine trees, we are planning on leaving a lot of those in that buffer zone, as
well as planting new trees in that area.

Chairman asked if other commissioners had questions.

Vice Chairman Overman:

Q. Going back to the issue regarding the setbacks. Noah may need to come up and address
this just to get it on the record regarding what the standard setbacks are and rules and
ordinances on that throughout the County. | think that in a prior discussion they run 10 to 15
to 8 feet in places.

Mr. Outten: Those are questions for Noah when he is called back.

Vice-Chairman Overman: There was a discussion about flood control and drainage. And |
understand you still need to get a state permit on that.

A. Yes sir.

Q. What are the capacity and the terms of your design of this project right now. What's the
capacity of the swales, basins and the collection areas versus any kind of normal projected
rainfall?

A. That's a question you will have to talk with my engineers about. | know some about the
depths of the things but they have all of the calculations and everything on that.

Q. Do you have any idea — what | am trying to get a feel for is what the capacity of them are.
Mr. Outten/Mr. Smith: In cross conversation agreed that was a question for the engineer.
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Mr. Smith: Also Mr. Commissioners, stormwater narratives are contained on the map, that’s
why | was trying to get it closer. It is very hard to read.

Vice-Chairman Overman: You probably have an expert that is going to talk about sewage
and waste, is that right?

Mr. Smith: Yes sir.

Chairman Woodard called upon Commissioner Couch.

Commissioner Couch questioned Mr. Alexander: I've lived in Hatteras all my life, my 63
years, and my biggest concern with this all along has been the homeowners’ association
because | can tell you two cluster home developments down there where the cluster home
developments for essential work force were there for a very short while and then they
became Airbnb and rented out to kite boarders, wind surfers and stuff like that. What kind of
assurances can we have — and you might not be able to answer this. Maybe this is
something that the docs and the bylaws will have to be drawn up with a homeowners’
association. But I'm asking you if it is your intent and in the spirit of workforce housing that
this will be for people, for healthcare professionals, for law enforcement people, for cleaners,
for people who make our economy go. | would like some assurances.

A. 100%. If I had any thoughts of making it any other way | would not have offered to make it
a year lease. By putting that in there | feel that that takes care of that and prevents that from
happening.

Commissioner Ross: | think you're asking if you sell the property to John Smith, John Smith
isn’t going to...

A. It's the same thing

Commissioner Couch: That's what bylaws are for.

A. | have no problem with... If | own them and | rent them, that's how | would want to have it.
So, anything that I sell with have that in it.

Mr. Smith: (addressed the Board) If | may intercede here, you have the power to add certain
conditions to usage when its granted and we are perfectly content with making that a
condition of use that it's got to be year-long rent to whoever owns them.

Chairman Woodard called upon Commissioner RosS.

Commissioner Ross: This may be satisfied by the experts, but | was looking and | heard
during public comment this thing is going to flood, it can’t drain, there is no filtration, this is
going to be really bad. I've been studying the drainage maps and the drawings and it
appears that the calculations show a storage requirement of 46,000 cubic feet. I'm reading off
the chart — compared to provision of storage of over 90,000 square feet with the addition of
grass swales not included therein which would add additional absorption and/or filtration of
stormwater. It's prepared by House Engineering. | presume they are licensed engineers and
they do this for a living?

A. Yes, they are.

Q. So, | also heard public comment that the calculations were completely inaccurate and
incorrect.

A. That is not correct.

Q. Ok. Second point. | understood that there was some concern and question about ingress
egress, traffic on the turn, and the site lines at the entrance, not the security gate that will be
for emergency vehicles, but the main entrance in and out, would be unsafe because it is part
of that sweeping turn that sweeps around Old Wharf Road. Has any traffic study or analysis
been done?

Dare County Board of Commissioners — April 3, 2023

59



Page 13 of 35

A. Yes. And | have two of the people from the traffic study here tonight.

Q. So we will be hearing from them?

A. Yes.

Commissioner House questioned Mr. Alexander: In the previous questioning you said you
never said this was going to be affordable housing, but market-rate housing. Is that correct?
A. Yes. It's going to be affordable as it can be in Dare County.

Q. I was just asking because on your application, project description: affordable housing. |
just want to make sure there is a clarification and that we are all on the same page.

A. Yes.

Q. Since the houses are so close together, and I've been in fire service for thirty years, are
you considering residential sprinkler systems for those houses?

A. No I'm not.

Q. Would you consider doing that?

A. That would be something that | would have to look into.

Commissioner Ross: Do you have any estimate about what the additional costs that would
be added to the $299k and $329k rough estimate?

A. No | would have to look into finding out. I'm not sure what that would be for a two or three-
bedroom. | know on a bigger house. I'm building a twenty-bedroom right now and a
residential sprinkler system has been quoted anywhere from $40-55,000.

Commissioner House: Also, it has also been brought up several times before from some of
the people in the community are wondering, with your design and everything laid out —
obviously we are going to have families there with children and obviously your lot coverage
does not cover the entire lot.

A. No.

Q. Are you planning on putting a play area for these children that are not in a swale, they're
not in a retention area for stormwater, it's separate from everything else and would be high
and dry for them to play in?

A. There is repair areas at the back end of each one the cul-de-sacs that is high land and is
not in the swales. That'’s six different areas that could be considered as play areas.

Q. Alright. I have some other questions for your engineer when he comes up.

Mr. Smith questioned Mr. Alexander: | forgot to ask you. Are any of these buildings going to
be more than 40 feet in height?

A. No they're not.

Q. And regarding the emergency services, just so there’s no confusion for the
commissioners, this gate was something that was requested to be put there by the fire
marshal?

A. Yes it was.

Q. And the main entrance is here (pointing to site exhibit)?

A. Yes.

Q. So has the fire marshal requested you to name each street that comes in there?

A. Yes.

Q. And you and your engineers, more the engineers than you actually, studied and followed
his weight recommendations for emergency fire equipment coming onto this property, if
necessary at 75,000 pounds.

A. Yes, all roads will be able to meet that criteria.
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Chairman Woodard asked if there was anyone in the audience representing homeowners
that had any questions for Mr. Alexander. (There was not.)

Mr. Smith called Rick House (he was placed under oath by the Clerk):

Commissioner Ross: Who are you sir?

Mr. House: My name is Rick House with House Engineering, | am a special engineer.
Commissioner Ross: So, you prepared all of these?

Mr. House: Yes, me and Dave Neff.

Mr. Smith: Mr. House, you live where?

A. In Kitty Hawk, North Carolina.

Q. Would you state your educational background please.

A. I went to Virginia Tech and got a bachelor of civil engineering in 91’, worked at Norfolk
Naval Shipyard for seven years as a structural engineer and a naval architect. | worked
underneath a professional engineer for the four years | needed to before | could take the test.
Professional engineering test that is. Took that test and passed it in 1999 and opened up my
company in May of 1999.

Q. Do you hold licenses in several states as a professional engineer?

A. I've got my national council record which allows me to practice in thirty-eight states. | have
an active license in eight states, including North Carolina.

Q. What are the other seven?

A. Virginia, South Carolina, Georgia, Tennessee, Texas, Oklahoma and Mississippi | think?
Oklahoma for sure. Eight states right now with active licenses, including North Carolina and
South Carolina.

Q. We previously introduced before the Board through Mr. Gillam some drawings, site
drawings for this project. Did you and your associates and employees do those?

A. Yes

Q. Are you familiar with them?

A. Yes.

Q. Tell me how these site plans were first developed. What was the first thing that was done?
A. The first thing we looked at was the site needs to be over 10 acres. And the setbacks,
trying to figure out how the traffic circulation would work and how the fire, emergency
services, and trash pickup and things would all work. Building layout, parking, and things like
that and we come up with this for a very efficient use of the property. There’re not many
wetlands on it. | think it's less than a tenth of an acre of wetlands that we’re planning on...
Commissioner Ross: | think it was 4,000 square feet, which is less (inaudible)

Mr. House: Given that we've come up with this plan for you guys.

Mr. Smith: Where is the main entrance?

A. The main entrance is right here.

Q. Can you describe the layout.

A. It comes in with a 22-foot wide entrance all the way to the back where we’ve got room to
turn our emergency vehicles. They can back in and front load the dumpsters at the very end
for trash pickup. They can back into one of the finger roads, as you call them, and turn
around and leave. There're six finger roads coming off the main road, that break the property
up so we can put seventy-six feet long buildings in.

Q. I understand these are going to be stick built?

A. Yes sir.
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Q. Tell us about the roads and swales. What will they be constructed of and what weight
bearing will they have.

A. The roads will be built to road standards and carry a 75,000-pound wheel load. They will
be made of a base course of rock, 6-8 inches and then an i-2 asphalt, and then the driveways
for each one will be gravel driveway for imperviousness.

Q. And did you also plan concrete underneath each of the structures?

A. Yes that is correct. Concrete underneath each structure, in some form or fashion to add at
least two parking spaces under each one — two in and two out.

Q. And is that one of the eight requirements to qualify for this special use and build?

A. Yes, itis.

Q. And this may be a little unfair and | may have to recall Mr. Gillam, but are you familiar with
the setback requirements?

A. Yes, in the VR-C2 zone district, | think they are 25 in the front, 10 on the side, then 15 on
the side next to Brinkly if it's a corner lot or road, and then 20 in the back or 20% of the lot
depth, whichever is least.

Q. And does each of these structures shown on this site map, which is also a storm drainage
map, reflect like that?

A. Yes, they do.

Mr. Smith: And we have another map that | will mark 16, what is that?

A. This is a site utility plan. C2 of the eight sheets in the binder that we have given you guys.
Q. Just walk us through the general requirements.

A. Basically it says that the subject property, the street address, the developer, the parcel ID
number, the global PIN, the recorded reference parcel area.

Q. And what is that?

A. 10.55 acres.

Q. Alright, go ahead please.

A. And then the proposed development is the 36 2-bedrooms and 24 3-bedrooms that Mr.
Alexander mentioned earlier. Lot coverage is 28.45, which is under the 30%, which is
required by zoning. Parking data: 60 units and one space per bedroom, we have 144 spaces.
Total spaces required: we have 144 and total spaces provided is 204. So, we are overparked
by 60. So, the zoning is VR, Wanchese Village Residential. The dwellings shall be rented on
long term basis as defined. | don’t know if you want me to read through every one.

Q. Tell us about the roads?

A. The roads are constructed of material to have all weather surface, capable of carrying the
imposed weight of fire apparatus of at least 75,000 pounds, which | said earlier.

Q. Returning back to Exhibit 12, and you see the storm drainage, are you familiar with that?
A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now this seems like a rudimentary question living on the coast, and I've been flooded four
times at my office, but tell us what storm drainage is about.

A. Stormwater collection is mandated by the authority having jurisdiction in the state.
Typically, we are using in Dare County unincorporated a 10-year, two-hour storm, which is
2.15 inches per hour which adds up to be 4.3 inches for the storm, designed storm and we
carry twice that on this project. We are right around 43,000 cubic feet and | think we are
holding in excess of twice that.

Q. What is the purpose of holding twice that?
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A. Just the factor of safety. Generally, we try to meet the main guidelines, that’s also not
letting any of the stormwater leave the property. Before anything leaves the property, it goes
into an erosion side ditch. It has to only get to the ten-year, two-hour storm, but we’ve got
twice that amount on this particular property. It just worked out that way. The soil scientist
that we had and we found out what the water table was, designed our stormwater swales and
that’s the volume calculations we came up with.

Q. Mr. House, does Dare County itself have an ordinance controlling drainage, or are we
under the state’s purview?

A. This is Dare County’s 10-year, 2-hour storm requirement. First inch and a half of rain has
to be kept on site. We ended up keeping nearly 8.6 inches on site before anything leaves the
site.

Q. Tell us about the septic system for this proposed development please?

A. The septic system is a TS2 type system. It's six, roughly 3,000 gallons per day system. It's
a series of tankage and drain fields that pretreats effluent to certain level of qualities so that it
can be distributed in a LPD drain field. And those are shown here (points to six locations).

Q. And who did you associate with, if anyone, to help you design that?

A. Mike Stidham at EZ Treat is the fella we worked with for years now on dozens and dozens
of projects. We have a very good working relationship.

Q. Is this drainage system like the septic system | might have at my house, or is it something
more fancy?

A. It's a little different. The effluent quality coming out of this is a little better — irrigation quality
effluent coming out of this system. It's called a treatment standard 2. The effluent quality
coming out of a gravity system that has not been treated other than to be anaerobically
treated inside of a tank so there’s not any circulation or any denitrification or any UV
stimulation of the “bad things”.

Q. What's the effect of that?

A. It makes the quality effluent going into the drain field much less hard to take on the water
table and the environment.

Q. Let's talk about emergency water system and hydrants. Was that designed into this?

A. Yeah, we use the rule of 400 foot as the hose is laid from the fire department. To be able
to protect any building so there are fire hydrants added in a couple of locations. Right here on
the main road you should see some fire hydrants. I'm trying to find them before | point them
to you sir. detect any of this — (some inaudible conversation) | don’t see them on this plan. It's
probably on the other plan.

After several plans being reviewed for location, Mr. Smith asked Mr. House:

Q. Is it your testimony that the hydrants ...

A. They are on there per the requirement. | just can’t see them. They are going to be such
that they are 400 feet from the edge of any building, as the hoses are laid down on the road
for protection.

Q. What size pipes are laid down?

A. Minimum six for fire hydrants and | think the main, water main at Old Wharf Road is
twelve-inch diameter that we will be tapping into.

Chairman Woodard: Mr. House, has it been considered or is it even approvable by NCDOT.
The county doesn’t own the first street. | apologize for lack of proper terminology, but an
approach lane going into the community rather than just you got a two-lane road and turning.
Is that something that would be approved by NCDOT or something you guys?
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A. DOT would recommend something like that in the program that we get from DOT yes.

Q. Is that something that you guys would consider?

A. | think we would consider that. | think it is a good idea from what | have heard tonight.

Q. In light of the traffic and what's been said | think that'’s critical if you guys will certainly
entertain that. | would ask Mr. Anderson that and | am sure, rather than calling him back up.
A. We'll look at that.

Q. You mentioned that the sewage is a TS2 system and I've looked at those and done some
studying on that. Pretty impressive. I'm told or | have read that once it goes through the
regular system and you got pumps that treat it and for lack of a better term macerates its
again?

A. Recirculates. Basically, it drops the solids out and treats the water and by recirculation and
detention time.

Q. Am | correct in making a statement that potentially that once it hits the drainage system it
would be a gray water type?

A. That's correct.

Q. Is it recommended, just like at my home...

A. It's an unabated wastewater system that the state has approved and is it recommended for
areas where you need to save space its recommended. Its on the expensive side so if you
can get away with a lesser treatment for a personal home, | would probably recommend that.
But for something like this where we're treating a lot of effluent, it's a great, great way of
handling that.

Q. That’s not where | was going with this. But that’s ok, I'm glad you said that. | am
fortunately on a town system now; but for forty years, | had a septic tank. Where | was going
with that is...

A. It's better on the environment.

Q. Is there something in the HOA documents that you entertain recommending that the
association look at cleaning those on a five-year basis?

A. There is an operation and maintenance agreement that you have to have in place that is
every six months | think... yearly?

Q. Because you got to have an operator that has to respond in twenty-four hours is that
correct?

A. That's correct.

Q. Now | looked with our planning director and there was a little controversary there with the
drainage. You talked about the state and | didn’t follow that like | should have, so I'm going to
ask our planning director to come up again later ... | don’t know if its proper to do it right now
since my fellow commissioners haven't had a chance to ask questions. But | am going to ask
him to come up and ask that in a minute.

Commissioner Couch: Just to get clarification, the light goes off and you got a sewage
problem with sixty occupied houses and every bedroom is full in there. The light goes off. Am
| understanding you correctly, they’ve got eighteen hours to get there, diagnose it and fix it?
A. It has twenty-four storage capacity built into every system. Each system is capable of
3,000 gallons so you wouldn’t have all sixty on one. You would have ten on one and you
would have six systems. And | doubt all six would go alarm at one time. So, | think twenty-
four-hour storage capacity and being able to get that taken care of with an operator is a
reasonable standard.
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Vice-Chairman Overman: With regard to maintenance, who is responsible for it before and
after the HOA takeover of the development?

A. The septic system?

Q. Yes.

A. Well I don’'t know exactly. | am thinking the developer needs to be and the installer are
responsible for it until it is turned over. | guess there would be an installer and the developer
until the operation of maintenance agreement is put into force through the HOA.

Q. Let's take it one at a time. Before the HOA, whose responsible for it?

A. The developer.

Q. Ok after the HOA?

A. The HOA.

Q. So they would be calling and contracting the same people each time, right?

A. Yes there are several operators that maintain these type systems. One of those guys or
groups would be on hire to take care of that twenty-four seven.

Q. Just a question that was asked about if one of the systems fails you got a twenty-four-hour
lead time.

A. A capacity for your septic tankage, yes sir.

Q. Now getting back to a perfect storm type system, | am asking the question because | know
nothing about a TS2 system. You get a heavy rainfall, you get that two-inch rain fall you were
talking about, does that have any bearing at all on that system’s twenty-four-hour capacity?
A. No the rain fall - the septic system is a sealed system so stormwater will not infiltrate that.
Q. How long, you said they had been around for a long time, how long have these TS2
systems been used?

A. TS2? Two decades probably. This particular one, | want to say fifteen years. Twenty-three
years?

Q. So you got a great history on them?

A. Yeah, we’ve got two decades at least, I'm sure. We’'ve done dozens of them.

Commissioner House: One thing | want to do is clear the air because I've heard this from a
couple of other people from the Wanchese community. You and | are not related even
though we have the same last name?

A. We're not but you look like my older brother.

Q. And | am not employed and | do not reap any benefits from House Engineering?

A. None whatsoever.

Q. Couple of things. The TS2 system, this is not brand new. They’'ve been around for a
while?

A. Yes.

Q. Are there many here on the Outer Banks already?

A. Absolutely.

Q. Especially some of those bigger houses on the beach?

A. Bigger houses on the beach, some restaurants, we just did a system startup today down in
a small motel right in Kitty Hawk. There are dozens, literally dozens if not hundreds on the
beach.

Q. So | can say it is not new to the area and they’'ve been proven?

A. No.

Q. Also, in Southern Shores there is a cluster home there, forty units built on four acres?
A. That's right.
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Q. Now with their stormwater in that particular area they do have some swales but they have
a retention pond. Now | noticed with this system you are actually covering like over twice,
double, almost triple the amount that you would need.

A. For stormwater?

Q. For stormwater.

A. That's right.

Q. But, if it were to come to fruition that the numbers were not right on this, is there enough
room on this property as it sits, to actually have to go back in and dig a retention pond if
necessary?

A. We have repair area fields yes sir. We have a full repair area field for this particular job.
Q. So if the calculations were wrong, you do have an area that you can go back.

A. We have a 100% repair area.

Q. The other question | had with the two fire hydrants and all that and those were with... | got
confused on a couple of your questions, was that a 12" or 8” line?

A. It's a 12" line on Wharf | believe that is existing, and it's a 6-inch minimum for fire hydrants.
We could go to an 8 if need be, but | think six is plenty for fire flow. We will be doing fire flow
testing to make sure that we have the proper gallons per minute and that will dictate what we
use.

Q. And that will be on the dead-end system not a loop system, correct?

A. That's a dead-end system that | can’t see right now because | don’'t have glasses on.

Q. And I'm sure Fire Marshal Kovacs has gone over the calculations for that so I’'m good.

Commissioner Ross: An awful lot of talk here about septic systems. | heard public comment
say that this will smell like an open sewer. Do you have concerns as an engineer that the
system will result in the neighbors smelling sewer?

A. 1 do not.

Q. Ok. Number two, | have a note saying that the calculations made on stormwater, retention
and runoff are grossly inaccurate and done incorrectly. Under oath, have you done grossly
inaccurate and incorrect calculations?

A. Absolutely not.

Commissioner Couch: Just an observation and to confirm that it is a twelve-inch line coming
down Old Wharf Road and then running down Brinkly according to Dare County website, it is
six inches around on over to Hooper Lane.

Vice-Chairman Overman: We were talking about HOA versus developer in terms of
maintenance for the TS2 system. Will the HOA have a funding source or a fund or something
that they donate to for the repairs and maintenance?

A. Typically there would be HOA fees involved.

Mr. Smith: | will recall Mr. Alexander to deal with that question.

Chairman Woodard: Mr. Smith, do you have another witness that you will call?

A. Yes sir.

Chairman Woodard: Before you do that, | would like to clarify if | can call our planning
director up.

Mr. Gillam returns for questions.
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Chairman Woodard: Noah, you heard that statement on the drainage issues. Can you speak
to that?

A. Yes sir. Dare County doesn’'t have any stormwater requirements in their cluster home
ordinance or in the VR ordinance. From my understanding in talking to the engineer that |
have been dealing with in the project, which was David Neff, who works for Mr. House with
House Engineering, that his design is designed to the North Carolina State stormwater
requirements. When you disturb an acre of property, the state has two different sets of
permits that you have to go through. One of them is the North Carolina Sedimentation and
Erosion Control permit. As part of that permit, you are required to get a low-density
stormwater permit through the state. But the conditions for both of those permits have been
addressed through conditions with the special use permit.

Q. Thank you Noah, I just wanted to clarify that.

Mr. Smith questioned Mr. Gillam:

Q. The state has to issue those permits assuming the Board issues the Special Use, right?
They will look at it. They will make determination.

A. Yes sir. The applicant won’t be able to break ground or do any ground disturbing activity
you know, removing dirt, pushing dirt, doing any of those until they had the permit.

Q. So they would have to get a bunch of permits before they would move dirt, is that correct
until they had proven to the state satisfaction that these things had been met, is that right?
A. Yes sir. With review of the project there are three permits that would be outside of the
scope of Dare County. One would be the wetlands and field permit for the Army Corps of
Engineers. The other two would be the North Carolina Sedimentation and Erosion Control
permit issued by the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality, and as part of that
would be the North Carolina Stormwater Management Permit.

Chairman Woodard: Hold on a minute Noah, we’ve got a setback question we need to ask
you.

Vice-Chairman Overman: Getting back Noah to how close the houses were together and how
close they were on the back end and front end. How about go through those setback
ordinances in the county and what the rules are there.

A. So this is in Wanchese Village Residential District. The front yard setbacks going to be 25’
measured from the property line. The side yard that doesn’t abut the corner of Brinkly Drive,
those are going to be a 10’ side yard setback. The side that abuts Brinkly the VR District
requires that there be an additional 5’ requirement on that for that side abutting Brinkly Drive,
so that would be a 15’ side back. The rear property line set back would be, | believe it's 20’ or
20% not to exceed 20’ that's how it reads in the ordinance.

Q. So simplify it. On both ends it's about 20’.

A. Yes sir. (Mr. Gillam went to the map to repeat the information and it was inaudible.)

Q. And | think you had mentioned to me in a prior discussion when we were talking about this
that in some places in Dare County its as low as 8’ that houses can be apart?

A. Yes sir in the R4 district, which is portions of Colington Island, they have an 8’ side yard
setback for all their residential lots in that development.

Q. Ok, so these setbacks are ...

A. Their property line setbacks here are greater than that. The building setbacks per the
requirement or the building separation requirements in the cluster home ordinance are 15'.
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Mr. Smith asked Mr. Gillam: Are you familiar with the proposed landscaping around the
property?

A. Yes sir.

Q. I am going to show you Exhibit 17. Does the landscaping meet up with what you
understand was required or allowed?

A. So for clarification for the Commissioners, you have all these sheets in the packet provided
by myself. This is sheet C4 of 8 out of that packet. The Dare County Cluster Home ordinance
does not require any type of buffer. The applicant shows a proposed a buffer on his site plan.
And so, as a condition of this Special Use Permit, myself and the Planning Board thought it
appropriate to add a condition to the Special Use Permit that made this requirement and |
believe it's in there it reads he shall leave existing trees and strengthened that with
indigenous natural bushes or something to that affect. | don’t have the language directly in
front of me.

Commissioner Couch: Correct, I'm reading it.

Mr. Gillam: And | believe again on the bottom property boundary against Mr. Werth’s property
and the properties on Old Wharf state that the applicant proposed a fence there and that
language is again included in the Special Use Permit.

Chairman Woodard: Well the vegetation buffer is Item 14 under the special conditions listed
in our packet.

A. Yes sir. And again, that was not a requirement of the ordinance but the applicant had his
designer show that on the site plan so | felt it was appropriate to include that as a condition
that that be installed.

Mr. Smith: | have no more questions, but | would like to submit (C4 of 8) that as Exhibit 17.
Chairman Woodard: At this time is there a representative attorney in the audience that
represents the citizens of Wanchese that has any questions to ask of Mr. House? (No one
came forward) Mr. Smith continue with your next witness.

Mr. Smith called and questioned Mike Stidham

Chairman Woodard: Mike Stidham and what is your profession?

(Clerk placed Mr. Stidham under oath.)

A. So | am the Vice-President and co-owner of EZ Treat, Incorporated. We manufacture
waste water treatment systems.

Q. Where is that located?

A. Our factory is in Catlett, Virginia.

Q. What type of...you heard Mr. House’s testimony?

A. Yes.

Q. Was he talking about a system you sell?

A. We manufacture the system so the TS2 system is a treatment standard two developed
in...it came into effect in North Carolina in July 1, 2007 under the 1970 rules. So, what it does,
it allows due to the quality of the effluent, we get reductions and allowances for the quality
effluent that we get with this, which allows us to develop these properties where we have
vertical separation issues. Water in lands and reductions that we may need from (inaudible).
Q. So go back you said vertical?

A. Yes we get vertical separation so instead of a conventional gravity system, you need to
have 30” of dry soil basically good soil. By using a TS2 system we can reduce that down to
18” and in some cases even 13.

Q. What's the effect of stormwater on these systems?
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A. No effect to the treatment system itself for stormwater.

Q. Why is that?

A. We are one of only two systems in the country that passed the NSF350, which is a reuse
guality testing with the National Science Foundation. So, there are more credits coming out
for a system like ours here starting January 1, 2024 with the new rules, the 18E Rules, which
actually allow us to even reduce and do even more better things than what they’re doing on
the property. Right now, we are required to have 100% drain field, and as of January 1, 2024,
in type one soils, sandy soils, we won’t be required to even have a reserve drain field.

Q. But in this one you do have a reserve drain field?

A. Yes sir we do.

Q. And how are these systems maintained? How is this project going to be maintained?

A. It's being maintained by rule. Right now, there are six systems on there just under 3,000
gallons a day. So, each of those systems will require a maintenance operator. He’'ll have to
make four visits a year and will have to test the system for the quality effluent twice a year.
Q. And is that required by the State of North Carolina?

A. That's by the State of North Carolina, and the operators have to be certified. They can’t
just have an operator’s license. | have to certify that operator so | have to know what they're
doing... | train them personally. So, | work very close with these guys. There is | think right
now five or six operators in the region from Hatteras all the way up through Corolla. Not
anybody’s going to be doing this. They’'ve got to demonstrate to me that... it's just like if you
had a BMW, you don’t want a Chevy mechanic working on your BMW. You've got to
demonstrate to me that you are doing this... then the operator’s required to turn in these
samples and these inspection reports to the local health department, the state health
department, and to the owner. So, before we can get an occupancy permit on any of these
buildings whatsoever, when we start this system the contract has to be in place with the
county. The county has to have a copy that the contract’s in place or they will not issue the
occupancy permit.

Q. Is there an odor problem with this system?

A. Lots of septic systems have odor problems. With our type system, a recirculating medium
filter, if you have an odor to it, then we know there’s a problem. And typically, that's a user
issue. It could be something like somebody on chemo that killed the biology in a single-family
house or it could be something happening inside the facility, but when you get an odor, you
know that that system’s not functioning right. The correction on that is one sampling the
effluent sample from the septic tank intake to make sure nothings killed the bacterial system.
So, if it kills the bacterial you are going to have a resolve for it. But the worst thing that could
possibly happen is you have to pump the septic tank and fill it up with clean water and restart
it. It's not a major issue. We've been doing this for twenty-years, as of February here in the
area, even the market place. We're in Southern Shores and there’s a 20,000 gallon-a-day
system there. We just installed an 18,000 gallon-a-day system over at the — it's a sea ranch
over on the Beach Road, revitalizing that system. | would say we’re probably in the
neighborhood of, | would say between 150 homes here between Currituck and Hatteras, up
and down the beach with systems consisting of single families, major rental properties,
subdivisions, all over the country, we do RV parks, campgrounds, restaurants, shopping
centers, subdivisions. We are the largest manufacturer in North Carolina throughout the
whole state. So, | think we're somewhere in excess of 60% of this type work is done as EZ
Treat.
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Mr. Smith: Those are my questions Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Woodard: Mr. Stidham, am | to assume that this TS2 system requires less than the
normal one-story beach box house drain field?

A. If you have a conventional system, a septic tank and a leach field, TS2. | get a 40%
reduction right off the top of the size of that drain field. If | go out and do what'’s called a
special assessment, hydraulic study over a period of twenty-four hours, and demonstrate that
the soil has the ability to move more water than that, right now, typically here in the beach, in
type one sands we get about 1.2 gallons a day per square foot with a drain field. But after
doing the hydraulic study over here on the Beach Road, we’ve got systems that do 3-5
gallons a square foot. The way everything is, it's prescriptive in the rules. It says you can do
“x”, but if you want to go spend the money to prove that you can do more then you have that
opportunity. But the burden becomes the owner’s burden to prove.

Q. I missed this, you said the operators are certified. These systems are required to be
inspected how often?

A. Well for under 3,000 gallons a day, which these systems are, they will require that the
operator make four visits a year for maintenance and operation, and he has to test the
effluent twice a year.

Q. Now when the inspector takes the sample, does he take it from the system or does he
take it from the drain field?

A. Ok so he’ll take the grab sample out of the pump tank that goes to the drain field. So, most
of these systems are under pressure, even though we’re on flat lands, we’ve got to pump it
anyway. So, | don’t know of any gravity system that | have here in the Outer Banks.
Everything is under pressure, so in the pump tank he’ll take the grab sample, the operator
will, and he’ll bring it down to the lab and have it tested and we get the results back in about a
week or so.

Q. Would you characterize my statement earlier to Mr. House as a factual statement that this
drain field once its going through this TS2 type system is equal or better than gray water?

A. It's not gray water, it's water.

Q. So, it's even better?

A. Yeah gray water is not clean.

Q. I know what gray water is.

A. This is reuse quality water. It's water.

Q. Thank you my friend. Appreciate your testimony

Commissioner Couch: No questions.

Vice-Chairman Overman: | must say it sounds like a pretty impressive system. You said
something earlier about solid separation. | guess it gets into how the system operates, but if
you would, go into that. You said the solids separate and then the water goes on back
through the system.

A. Basic septic tank 101: We branded this thing and call it a septic tank. What itisis a
biological digester. So, every component has a job. The septic tank itself separates your
solids and your scum, so you will have a scum layer up top of toilet paper and then you will
have a clarified zone and the solids will settle out at the bottom, which are typically your
organic carbonic material. So, there is a filter in that tank that filters down to one sixteenth
slot that comes down into the clarified zone and then draws water from the clarified zone and
moves it over to what we call a recirculation tank. Then in the recirculation tank I'll have
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pumps in there that pumps up to the pods and they’re treatment pods, which are basically a
synthetic sand filter and will recirculate that about seven-to-one time ratio. During that
process, the bacteria grows on the media. So, it's a service area equation, how much media
you have in there, so we dose that and feed the bugs that grow in there and keep that
healthy. After it comes out of the pods it will go to a device called a bypass valve which will
split the flow 80/20. Eighty percent will go to circulation again and 20% to your pump tank to
go over to your drain field. In that process is where we do the water, | mean...

Q. So the solids are eventually broken down?

A. Solids stay in the septic tank. They stay in the septic tank as a digester. That's why we
need to protect those bugs. Those bugs there are deficient of oxygen. So, when we come
over to the treatment system, we are introducing the oxygen in a surface area for those bugs.
So, it's an anaerobic to aerobic condition that does the process.

Q. So when the water comes out, you said, currently where you are in the project right now
you need how much depth?

A. Well with the LPP system on this job it's probably going to be a bed system, but you know
to your seasonable water table, I'm good at 18”. If | use drip irrigation rather than LPP, then |
can make it 13” instead of 18”.

Q. Do you know how much fill is going to be put on this lot?

A. They're currently finishing up the soil work right now. | don’t have that information sir.
Commissioner Ross: Wally, the information is between 15,000 to 18,000 square feet.
Vice-Chairman Overman: Maybe I'm not asking this question right. When they cut trees, clear
the land, and back in with fill, that fill is going to have a certain depth, and what | am trying to
gettois ...

A. It may not have any. We don’t know, because the soil study that they are doing right now
is going to tell us where that seasonable water table is.

Q. Gotcha.

A. If  am more than 18” above that seasonable water table then | don’t need it.

Q. Ok that’'s what | needed to know. Thank you.

Commissioner House: I’'m good.

Commissioner Ross: | heard public comment that there was a serious threat that this
development would destroy the aquifer under Roanoke Island. Can you testify under oath
that you do not have concerns that the aquifer will be destroyed?

A. | can testify under oath that my equipment is not going to destroy your aquifer.

Q. Ok thank you.

Chairman Woodard: Is there a representative in the audience, an attorney representing the
homeowners of Wanchese, if they have any questions of Mr. Stidham. (addressing someone
that stood up). Are you an attorney? | need you on record. You will have to be sworn in and
you have to have standing. (inaudible response)

Mr. Smith: | am lodging my objection. She has to have standing and unfortunately she
doesn't.

Chairman Woodard: She said she was a property owner.

Mr. Outten: Questioned the resident and determined she did not have standing to testify.

Chairman Woodard: Mr. Smith would you bring your next witness please. (Clerk placed the
witness under oath) State your name and who you are with?
A. Jessup Lee Lewis.
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Q. And your profession Mr. Lewis?

A. 1 am a licensed engineer in North Carolina. | specialize in transportation.

Mr. Smith:

Q. Mr. Lewis would you tell us a little bit about your educational background.

A. | graduated from NC State in 1993 with a bachelor of science in civil engineering,
specializing in transportation.

Q. And you are a licensed professional engineer?

A. I am licensed in North Carolina and Virginia.

Q. And how are you presently employed?

A. I am employed with VHB Engineering as senior project manager, again specializing in
traffic and transportation planning.

Q. And what does VHB Engineering NC, P.C. do basically?

A. All kinds of engineering, transportation and traffic engineering is just one of them. We do
structures, environmental studies, airports, specializing in bicycle and pedestrian planning as
well.

Q. And does it do road traffic studies and road impact traffic studies?

A. Yes. In the past ten years we have performed 200 studies similar to this one.

Q. And are you familiar with this project that we’ve been here about tonight?

A. Yes.

Q. How did you become familiar with it and what were you employed to do if anything?

A. We entered into a contract in mid-February to perform a traffic impact analysis study for
the development.

A. And how did you do that?

A. Once we entered the contract we mobilized staff to set up video cameras at three
intersections along Old Wharf Road for the purposes of gathering traffic data. Once we got
the traffic data in then we got it processed and we started working on our analysis as well.
The original goal was to be here | think in March, but we got postponed until today.

Q. Was the study required by the North Carolina Department of Transportation?

A. It was not, but we did perform it to their standards and we submitted it to them for any kind
of feedback. We haven't received any written feedback yet.

Q. When you did this was there any type of... when you did this what was the purpose of the
cameras?

Q. Well in the olden days we would have people set up with chairs by the roadside and press
buttons or even make tic marks on a piece of paper counting cars, but now the new way is to
actually put video cameras up that actually video and then we send the video out for
processing and get the data that way. It's very reliable and its preferred standard right now by
NCDOT.

Q. And did you in fact prepare a written report?

A. Yes, we did.

Q. And | want to show you what | have marked as Petitioner’s 18, which | am going to hand
to Mr. Outten. If the Commissioners would like a couple of copies, | have some extras.

Q. What period of time that you did this traffic analysis.

A. We gathered traffic data Wednesday and Thursday, February 22" and 23 | believe for
two days of weekday traffic and also the following Saturdays. We did counts, we have a
weekend count as well.

Q. Why did you pick a Wednesday and Thursday during the week?
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A. We typically try to capture days when schools are in session so we make sure we capture
that peak traffic. So peak areas in the am and pm so we try to get those and Saturday we just
picked the highest peak hour. Again, that is standard practice.

Q. I was going to say, does this meet the standard for the North Carolina Department of
Transportation?

A. Yes.

Q. What is the speed limit on Old Wharf Road?

A. It's 35 mph.

Q. And did you come to certain conclusions after arriving all of the data that’s in this 100-
page plus report?

A. Yeah, we concluded that even though there was going to be traffic generated by the site,
it's not going to be a significant level so as to create exceptional queuing which is backing up
the traffic at the existing intersections or delays at the existing intersections.

Q. I believe on page 20 of your report, you have your conclusions?

A. Yes.

Q. Could you just walk us through those because they’re way above my pay grade?

A. Basically on the intersection that we studied we are operating at a really high level of
service A and B.

Q. And what does that mean?

A. Which means they have less than fifteen seconds of delay on average during the peak
hours of study.

Q. Is that a good thing or a bad thing?

A. It's a good thing. These are unsignalized intersections and typically you go to full service E
and F and actually be acceptable for these intersections, but we're not even approaching that
here.

Q. Is it correct that A for example would be the best?

A. A is the best.

Q. Did you come up with any recommendations for the site?

A. For the site we analyzed that just a single driveway with a single inbound lane and one
outbound lane, we did not study any additional improvements at offsite intersections.
Although | understand there is some discussion now about adding like a decel lane going into
the site.

Q. And why didn’t you propose that?

A. We try to be conservative in our analysis. Look at the least capacity improvements at the
intersection — and just see what we had to work with and so we had very good level of
service so we didn’t recommend adding an additional unsignalized road.

Q. I am pointing here at Petitioner’'s 17 in which the road appears the same on all of them.
So, you're saying your recommendation was one lane in and one lane out?

A. Yes based on the traffic goings.

Q. And would you have any other recommendations at all based on your study?

A. No just make sure we have at least one lane in one lane out that was it.

Q. For example, were there any certain traffic density out here were there any left turns off of
Pugh Road that you found on any of the three days that you did this turning onto Old Wharf
Road?

A. No.
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Q. And did you determine how much of an increase there would be in traffic by assuming that
in 2024 this is built — this project is completed in 2024 over what was out there in 20237

A. Yeah, we’d anticipate that during the weekday A and B our increase of just over 50
vehicles on the frontage of the site and then with weekday p.m. about 60 and the same thing
on Saturdays, an increase of about sixty vehicles along Old Wharf Road at the site.

Q. And you mentioned something called LOS?

A. Level of service.

Q. Ok, how are those vehicles going to affect the level of services at all?

A. Well like | said all the intersections operate on a LOS of A and B during all scenarios so
pretty insignificant in terms of operations.

Q. Did you have any other recommendations other than those that we just discussed?

A. No.

Mr. Smith: Those are my questions Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Woodard: Thank you Mr. Smith. Mr. Lewis thank you for being here. This is a lot to
digest tonight.

A. Yes sir.

Q. I'm sure we’re not going to make any decisions tonight because this is critical to a piece of
the testimony that we’ve heard here tonight. As a novice of reading this, and you just
presented this to me.

Mr. Smith: Yes sir.

Chairman Woodard: So, | don’'t have a clue at what | am looking at. And Mr. Lewis has
stated that they did studies. Tell me in layman’s terms how many days you did the study and
what time of the day that you did the study and what were the three locations?

A. Our three locations are Brinkly, Pugh and Mills Landing.

Q. Ok let me write that... Brinkly, Pugh and what?

A. Mills Landing — Mill Landing, sorry.

Q. Alright. How many times did you do it at Brinkly, at Pugh and at Mill Landing?

A. We counted all three intersections, two days, a Wednesday and a Thursday to be able to
get one good day of traffic because of the weather. We understand that on a Wednesday
there was a crash and we did not even use Wednesday’s data, we just used Thursday’s data.
And then we did count Saturday, immediately after Wednesday and Thursday. We
discovered equipment issues, so we went back the following week til we made two trips down
here to count on the Saturday.

Q. Two trips on Saturday?

A. Yeah, but we only used the one good data. One good data set. And we recounted all three
intersections on that Saturday to make sure we had consistent data at all three intersections.
Q. And what were the dates that you did that?

A. It was February 22" and 23 and March 5™, the following Saturday.

Q. With all due respect.

A. The 4™ I'm sorry.

Q. Would you not find that February and March, which we know we just asked that this to be
done. This is a hypothetical question | guess, but | would seem to think that we would have a
lot different findings come May, June or July, August, September, in the summer months.

A. You might, yeah. But the timing of this meeting and the study was now.

Q. This Board said let’s do a traffic study. We weren’t under any timeline to get it done. We
could have done this in another 30-60 whatever days. We couldn’t? Why couldn’t we?
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Mr. Smith: The hearing was scheduled for tonight.

Chairman Woodard: Well | know but we could have postponed — we could have had the
hearing in May or June Mr. Smith. The point I'm making is... | gotta shoot holes in this
because you did samples of four days. And what was the times the samples were taken?
Mr. Lewis: We counted morning peak period, which was 6-9 a.m.

Chairman Woodard: 6-9

A. And then the evening peak, which was 4-6. And that’s pretty typical where we capture the
peak areas.

Q. So we did a traffic study four days, 6-9 and 4-6? And, once again, | have to look at this
because | don’t know what the numbers are. | am going to have to go through this and find
out what the total numbers are. You did this via video camera. Your conclusion is, based on
the numbers, and maybe you can help me out. Tell me what the maximum number was in the
peak hours, rather than me having to guess and look at this through this report right now?
A. I'll find the figures real quick for you. Figure 4.

Q. What page is that on?

A. It would be page 8, it's got the existing weekday and Saturday peak hour volumes
displayed.

Q. I can't find it, just give me the numbers.

A. So passing in front of the site during the weekend a.m./p.m., it's about 180 vehicles total.
Q. And that's 6-9 a.m.?

A. Well that’s just a peak hour so we’ve got that down for the peak hour.

Q. So is that peak for Pugh or Mills Landing?

A. That's the peak volume in front of the site along Old Wharf

Q. Alright, so roughly 180 vehicles?

A. Yes

Q. At peak?

A. Yes.

Q. Is that average for the four times you did it?

A. That was the absolute peak for the Thursday count. 94 in one direction and 85 in the other
direction.

Q. So it’'s based on these calculations and your findings. You may have heard me earlier ask
Mr. House if they would entertain a turn lane. Based on your calculations, you don’t think
that's necessary?

A. Well the volumes | just quoted to you are the existing counts. If you want to talk about the
build volumes, we’re talking about right turn in in the morning, would be twelve vehicles
approximately. In the afternoon, we think peak would be about 38 vehicles turning in. And
then on Saturday peak about 33 vehicles turning right in. So that's actually a really light
volume for that movement, but | understand that is pretty typical if you put in a right turn decel
lane in this situation.

Q. Well thank you Mr. Lewis, | appreciate your patience and like | say | just got this so |
apologize not being able to understand this, but | gotta look at this packet a lot more.

A. Well only about a third of it is report, the other two-thirds are all the backup data, if you
want to look at that. It's pretty simple.

Mr. Outten: Chairman, | have just one question along the lines you were just talking.
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Q. You are saying, if | heard you say this, this was however you rate it is at best along the
lowest rating, therefore you had very few recommendations. | don’t remember the acronym
that you used.

A. LOS - level of service.

Q. So how much more traffic would you need to generate the next level worse.

A. Well for an unsignalized intersection like | said so your threshold for acceptability is pretty
high because of all the side street traffic you don’'t have any delay so.

Q. If you doubled that traffic, what would that do to your recommendations?

A. We would have to run that analysis and take a look at that and see. It might change a little
bit.

Q. In what way?

A. Well then you are talking about the burden is really on the traffic exiting the site really.
Because we assign all the traffic only coming from the site. We didn’t assign traffic coming
right (inaudible). Again, that’s taking a very conservative approach so the burden...

Q. It wouldn’t change anything putting your site lines at the intersection north and south?

A. Site lines? We didn’t really focus on the site lines so much that going to be something to
be decided with a discussion with DOT, as part of the site driveway permit access. That's
still... we did talk with DOT about that and we know that it is a concern. But no, the traffic, the
volumes wouldn’t have as much of a factor on the site line as you might think. | mean if you
want a sensitivity analysis we could do something like that depending on what extra volume
would raise us to the next level.

Chairman Woodard to Mr. Outten: Did you get your answer? Thank Mr. Lewis. | am going to
ask Commissioner Couch if he has any questions.

Commissioner Couch: No there’s been a lot of deep information. I’'m good.

Vice-Chairman Overman: Mr. Lewis, this study was done in February and early March let’s
say. Do you have a factor that you would plug in for what we anticipate the traffic on that road
being in the summertime? We have eight times the number of residents in Dare County
coming every week and a bunch of those folks go to Wanchese for various reasons. Some go
to buy seafood, some just ride around site seeing and that sort of thing. We have a totally
different dynamic in the summertime, which again goes back to the question do we need a
turn in lane?

A. | can go back to NCDOT and go ask about a seasonal adjustment factor. | don’t think they
said they had one at the time. | can double check again. And we’ve got some other data that
we can rely on, it’s called “pro data”, use of cell phone signals things like that, the
manufacture traffic data that's becoming more and more reliable. We can take a look at
something like that. You can go back in time, if you tell us a date, we can probably go back
and extract some kind of data, but again that goes back to | guess the density of the cell
phone signals in the area, if its not that dense that you are not really going to get a lot but we
could take a look at something like that if you really wanted to see it, but | really understand
your point.

Q. Yes sir, thank you.

Commissioners House: I'm good. I'm still trying to digest all of this.

Commissioner Ross: No questions.

Chairman Woodard: Thank you Mr. Lewis, | appreciate it. | am going to ask if there is a
representative in the audience on behalf of the Wanchese residents, if they have any
guestions of Mr. Lewis.
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Someone stood up and stated: “I believe | have enough cause to stand before the court.”
Chairman Woodard: Ok let’s see if you meet the criteria for standing. Tell me what you
figure you — | just need to know if you qualify.

Resident: An accident and recovery (inaudible) through a training course through wreck
masters and | actually have a certification too. I'd like to comment on the traffic study that was
done.

Chairman Woodard: | will defer to my attorney to see if you meet the standards.

Mr. Outten: Do you have an ownership interest in the property?

Resident: An ownership interest?

Mr. Outten: I'm reading from the statute what the standing requirements are. To have
standing, you have to have an ownership of interest in the property or you have to have an
option contract to purchase the property. Do have that?

A. No sir.

Q. You have to be the applicant or you have to be a person who suffers special damages.
A. | am a first responder.

Q. That’s not one of the ... a person who would suffer special damages as a result of the
decision and that’'s damages to you as a person distinct from ...

A. (inaudible) highway with a loaded tractor trailer (inaudible) personal damages.

Q. Damages that are distinct from you from the public. Is the damage to you different from
the public at large?

A. (Inaudible.) Yes sir.

Mr. Outten: It would be your call Mr. Chairman.

Chairman Woodard: Go ahead.

Resident: So in your study of a 180 cars...

Chairman Woodard: You've got to be sworn in.

Mr. Outten: Are you going to testify or are you going to ask questions.

Resident: | am going to ask a question but | am going to testify.

Mr. Outten: Then you have to be sworn in. (Clerk swears in resident)

Mr. Outten to Mr. Smith: You're objection is noted.

Resident: If the 180 vehicles that were recorded.

Mr. Outten: You've got to give your name:

Resident: My name is Rex Mann. Of the 180 vehicles that were recorded, how many were
tractor trailers.

Mr. Lewis: | don't think we really had a number on that.

Mr. Mann: The federal motor carrier safety administration says that it takes almost two
football fields to stop a loaded tractor trailer.

Mr. Outten: At what speed?

Mr. Mann: At normal operating speed.

Mr. Outten: What's that?

Mr. Mann: So let’s say its 55-65 mph.

Mr. Outten: But's its 35.

Mr. Mann: Well how many pounds are on it. What is it carrying. At 80,000 pounds on 65 so
we can figure they need at least a football field to stop, correct?

Mr. Outten: In a 35 mph zone?

Mr. Mann: | would guess. | would say that it would take one football field to stop a tractor
trailer. If you divide it by two, am | wrong?
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Mr. Smith: Mr. Chairman, | am going to move to object. He is not an expert in this area and
he’s asking me a question.

Mr. Mann: Divided by two, 720 divided by two is 360 — so you have never stopped a tractor
trailer on this corner before. | am just asking if you would have another traffic study done
...(inaudible).

Chairman Woodard: The object is sustained on Mr. Smith’s part. Since unfortunately you are
not an expert in that area, but thank you. Any other questions of Mr. Lewis?

Mr. Smith: Yes sir. Mr. Lewis, ultimately if this project is approved for special use, the North
Carolina Department of Transportation would make the decisions concerning this road, right?
A. Yes.

Mr. Smith: Thank you. Those are my questions.

Chairman Woodard: Let me ask you this Mr. Smith. How many more witnesses do you
have?

Mr. Smith: None.

Chairman Woodard: Do you have any closing comments?

Mr. Smith: No.

Mr. Outten: You have to ask (inaudible)

Chairman Woodard: You are talking about the citizens of Wanchese?

Mr. Outten: So, anyone who has standing that wants to present evidence.

Chairman Woodard: I've asked that up to this point and no one has said anything. But if
anybody feels like that they have standing, please present yourself and we’ll see if you meet
the criteria. County Attorney has addressed...

Resident came forward: Chairman Woodard: State your name.

Good evening my name is Joseph T Willis.

Chairman Woodard: Ok you've heard the county manager and it requires standing. Do you
have that?

Mr. Willis: Yes sir, | believe | do but I'll leave it up to the county manager.

Chairman Woodard: State your standing.

A. My standing is | am the heir to 365 and 383 Old Schoolhouse Road.

Mr. Outten: Where's that:

A. ltis in Wanchese, North Carolina, it is probably about 300 yards from this proposed site.
Q. And as that are you a person who suffers special damages independent of the public?
A. No sir,  am not.

Q. Do you have any ownership interest in the property?

A. I am the heir to the property.

Q. The heir to this property?

A. Yeah the heir to 365 and 383 Old Schoolhouse Road.

Q. The property that is under this site?

A. No sir, I am not.

Q. And you don’t have a contract to purchase that property?

A. 1 do not.

Q. And you don’t represent an owners’ association on behalf of the community?

A. | was speaking on behalf of the community.

Q. Are you part of an incorporated or an unincorporated association designated by virtue of
owning or leasing the property in that area, or association otherwise organized to protect and
foster the interest of the particular neighborhood who also has standing to be here?
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A. I am a person representing the Wanchese Lions, | believe is an unincorporated entity.

Q. And are they designed to ...What'’s the purpose of the Lion’s?

A. I would have to defer to the (inaudible) of that.

Q. Then it's not one of the purposes of

Chairman Woodard: You do not have standing unfortunately.

A. If that's the case sir since | believe | did have standing at the time. | do see a five-minute
clock here. If it pleases, | would...

Chairman Woodard: It's not open to the public. This is a quasi-judicial hearing

Mr. Outten: This is not a public hearing. This is a trial.

Chairman Woodard: This is a quasi-judicial hearing. | am sorry | can’t allow you to speak.

A. I understand. Thank you very much. Is there an opportunity for me to speak otherwise at
some other future date for five minutes?

Mr. Outten: Yes, every meeting we have public comment.

A. Ok thank you sir.

Chairman Woodard: That would be our May meeting. Is there anyone else in the audience
feel like they have standing. Alright hearing none, Mr. Smith.

Question from the audience as to the definition of the last person that didn’'t have standing.
(partially inaudible)

Mr. Outten: I'll read it to you with the Chairman’s permission. An incorporated or
unincorporated association to which owners or lessees of property in a designated area
belong by virtue of their owning or leasing property in that area, or an association otherwise
organized to protect and foster the interest of the particular neighborhood or local area, so
long as at least one of the members of the association would have standing as an individual
to challenge the decision. (inaudible audience response) If the purpose of that committee was
to organize and protect and foster the interest of a neighborhood, then that committee would
require, but he would have to have standing...(inaudible audience response). He would then
have to have standing as an individual of that organization. So, he would have to be
somebody who met those other criteria as well, and that's where it falls apart. This is a trial to
put on evidence, not to give opinion. (inaudible audience responses)

Chairman Woodard: Stand down please. We'll move forward County Manager. You've
answered the question. | would ask Mr. Smith if he has anything else to present.

Mr. Smith: | just have a very brief statement. More than fifty years ago, the North Carolina
Supreme Court in deciding the issue of special use permits, such as the one that we are
dealing with here, said that the governmental entity, such as yourself, is restricted to its own
ordinance and that it is not the burden of the petitioner such as Aria here to persuade. It is
just the burden to present. And we have presented overwhelming evidence as to those things
that are in your per venue. And we’ve gone beyond that because you’'d had an interest, like
the traffic study for example. You had rightly, | suppose, for your constituents’ concerns
asked for one so we attempted to provide it; but if you look at your statute, what has to be
shown, is that it is an allowable special use, which it is at VR according to your manager.
That the setbacks are made, separations of the dwellings are appropriate, the lot coverage is
appropriate, the building height is appropriate, the maximum size is appropriate, the parking
is appropriate and the roads can be serviced by emergency or service vehicles. All that we
have shown and that’'s what we have to prove. That's our presentation. Thank you.

Chairman Woodard: In light of the time this evening, it's 10:30.....
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Mr. Outten suggested to the Board that they close the presentation of the evidence formally
and if they are going to come back, and they could either deliberate now or take time to read
all of the evidence and deliberate and come back at another meeting.

Chairman Woodard: Stated he had had all his questions answered. He would defer to his
fellow commissioners; however, he wanted time to digest the traffic study. He further stated
that the matter be taken up at the May 1, 2023 Board meeting with a change of time to 5:00
p.m.

MOTION

Commissioner Couch motioned that the Board digest the information in the next thirty days
and be prepared to arrive at a decision after an opportunity to review the various reports at
the May meeting.

Commissioner House seconded the motion.

VOTE: AYES unanimous.

Hearing adjourned at 10: 30 p.m.

ITEM 11- CONSENT AGENDA
The Manager announced the items as they were visually displayed in the meeting room.
MOTION
Commissioner House motioned to approve the Consent Agenda:
1) Approval of Minutes (03.06.23) (Att. #2)
2) Tax Collector's Report
3) DHHS — Social Services Adult Protective Services Essential Services Funding
4) Billing Services for Dare Water Department
5) Zacchaeus Legal Services — Tax Collection
6) Public Works — Bulk Fuel Purchases Budget Amendment
7) Virginia Tillett Community Center Budget Amendment
8) Advertise 2022 Tax Year Liens
9) Health and Human Services — Public Health Division, Trillium Opioid Remediation
Program Funding
Commissioner Couch seconded the motion.
VOTE: AYES unanimous

ITEM 12 — BOARD APPOINTMENTS

1) Aging Advisory Council for the Albemarle Commission
Commissioner Ross motioned to appoint Beth Moore and Sandy Pace
Vice-Chairman Overman and Commissioner Couch seconded the motion.
VOTE: AYES unanimous

2) Dare County Board of Adjustment
Commissioner Couch motioned to reappoint Edward Mann, Jr. and Anna Creef.
Commissioner House seconded the motion.
VOTE: AYES unanimous

3) Airport Authority
Vice-Chairman Overman motioned to reappoint James R. Kenny for a 4-year term.
Commissioner House seconded the motion.
VOTE: AYES unanimous
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4) Manns Harbor Marina Commission
Vice-Chairman Overman motioned to reappoint Cyndy Holda, Ladd Bayliss, Jonathan
Oglesby and Jessie Outland, Jr.
Commissioners Couch and House seconded the motion.
VOTE: AYES unanimous

5) Veterans Advisory Council
Vice-Chairman Overman motioned to reappoint Robert Probst and Marsha Brown.
Commissioner House seconded the motion.
VOTE: AYES unanimous

6) Upcoming Board Appointments
The upcoming Board appointments for May, June and July, 2023 were announced.

Chairman Woodard summarized statements: This Wanchese project was a market rate
project. It was not one of the projects currently in process by the County. Commissioner Ross
stated we had sewer questions. Those had been answered tonight.

ITEM 13 — COMMISSIONERS’ BUSINESS & MANAGER’S/ATTORNEY’'S BUSINESS
A brief summary of the items mentioned by Commissioners and the County Manager follows:

Commissioner Overman

e On March 14, the Community Foundation had their yearly meeting. It was well attended.

e The Veterans Advisory Council met on March 28. He and Roxanne Ballinger attended to
promote the “fentanyl kills” campaign and left literature and Kits.

e On March 30 the Savings Lives Task Force hosted a summit on substance use and
mental health issues at St. Andrews by the Sea.

e He congratulated the service pin recipients and the employee of the month.

Commissioner House

e On April 12 the NC Marine Fisheries would meet at Dare to review shell fish leases.

e He said several teams from Dare schools were moving forward in the Odyssey of the
Mind, a problem-solving and creativity program. He recommended providing some
assistance with the cost of the world championship trip to Michigan which was expected to
be around $25,000. Typically, private donations raised funds. Board discussed briefly.

MOTION:

Commissioner House motioned to provide $10,000 towards the cost of the trip for this year’s

Odyssey of the Mind. Board discussed briefly.

MODIFIED MOTION:

Commissioner House motioned to contribute to the Odyssey of the Mind trip in an amount not

to exceed $10,000.00.

Vice Chairman Overman seconded the motion.

VOTE: AYES unanimous.

Commissioners Ross and Couch did not have further business.
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MANAGER’'S/ATTORNEY’S BUSINESS (Att.# 3)

Mr. Outten explained the need to process a voluntary annexation with Manteo for sewer
disposal work on the land that Woda Cooper was planning to build essential housing pending
permits.

MOTION

Vice-Chairman Overman motioned to authorize the County Manager to write a letter on
behalf of Woda Cooper to authorize a voluntary annexation with the Town of Manteo, if they
grant the sewage permit.

Commissioner Couch seconded the motion.

VOTE: AYES unanimous

He had been working on the budget with Mr. Clawson and the implementation of the salary
study. As they moved funds around they would be short and he needed authority to cover the
gaps with budget amendments for fiscal year 2023. The subject would be addressed again
and covered during the next budget cycle.

MOTION

Commissioner Couch motioned to authorize the County Manager to sign any budget
amendments necessary for fiscal year 2023 as they relate to the salary study changes for
fiscal year 2023.

Vice-Chairman Overman seconded the motion.

VOTE: AYES unanimous

At the conclusion of the meeting, Chairman Woodard asked for a motion to adjourn.
MOTION

Commissioner House motioned to adjourn the meeting and recess the decision of the quasi-
judicial item until May 1, 2023.

Commissioner Ross seconded the motion.

VOTE: AYES unanimous

At 10:51 p.m., the Board of Commissioners adjourned until 5:00 p.m., May 1, 2023.
Recess the meeting
Respectfully submitted,

[SEAL]

By:

Cheryl C. Anby, Clerk to the Board

APPROVED: By:

Robert Woodard, Sr., Chairman
Dare County Board of Commissioners

Note: Copies of attachments (Att.), ordinances, contracts, presentations, and supporting material considered
by the Board of Commissioners at this meeting are on file in the office of the Clerk to the Board. Public
comment has been summarized with attempts made to accurately reflect the spelling of each name as
spoken at the podium based on the legibility of the sign-in sheet.
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Tax Collector’s Report

Description

March 2023 Releases over $100
March 2023 Refunds over $100
March 2023 NCVTS Refunds over $100

Board Action Requested
Approved

Item Presenter
Becky Huff, Tax Collector
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Courthouse Computer Systems
Software License and Support Agreement

Description

Courthouse Computer Systems, Inc. provides the data conversion, licensing, software support and website
maintenance for the computer recording equipment at the Register of Deeds. This includes the software
modules used for document recording, indexing, retrieval, imaging, vital records management, marriage license
applications, issuance and image redaction. Contract period will be for July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2025.

Board Action Requested
Approve and Authorize the County Manager to sign

Item Presenter
Cheryl House, Register of Deeds
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Dare County Disaster Debris Management Contract

Description

CTC Disaster Response is the low bidder on the County's disaster debris contract followed by Southern Disaster
Recovery (SDR).

On April 12th, the County Manager, along with Dare County staff met with members from CTC Disaster
Response to discuss their past storm experiences and their approach to Dare County's disaster needs. Following
the meeting, CTC visited the various temporary debris management sites and met with members from the Park
Service to discuss expectations at the Buxton site.

Board Action Requested

Approve the disaster debris contract and authorize the County Manager to make changes as needed, sign the
contracts, award the primary contract to CTC and the secondary contract to SDR.

Item Presenter
Dustin Peele - Project and Procurement Manager
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DEQ Cost Share - Miss Katie 23/24 Dredging

Description

DEQ Shallow Draft Navigation Fund Resolutions to request 75% cost share for dredging activities by tr
Katie during 2023/2024. The Board of Commissioners allocates $250,000 yearly for dredging in Hatter:
which would be matched with $750,000 from the State. $3 million is allocated for the channels near Or
Inlet yearly which would be matched with $9 million from the State. DEQ has requested contracts be sy
on channel locations. The Oregon Inlet Task Force at their April meeting requested allocating $8.5 milli
Oregon Inlet, $1.5 million to Walter Slough & the Crack, $1.6 millon to the channels from 17 extension |
Wanchese & Manteo, and $400,000 to Old Lighhouse Channel 2. Funds can be reallocated amongst tt
channels during the year.

Board Action Requestel
Adopt Resolutions

Item Presentel
Barton Grover, Grants & Waterways Administrator
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DEQ Cost Share - Walter Slough & the Crack

Description
Before dredging can occur by the Miss Katie in the Crack & Walter Slough, the agencies have required

Shellfish, and Cultural Resource Surveys be performed in these channels. Total cost is $130,000 of wh
would be covered by the State Shallow Draft Navigation Fund. Total Dare County match is $32,500. Re¢

balance in 25 fund is $327,127.

Board Action Requestel
Adopt Resolution, authorize County Manager to execute necessary budget amendment upon award, al

Coastal Protection Engineering to perform services related to contract

Item Presentel
Barton Grover, Grants & Waterways Administrator
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Board Appointments

Description

The following Boards have appointments or actions this month:
1. Juvenile Crime Prevention Council
2. Waterways Commission
3. Library Board - Dare
4. Upcoming Board Appointments

Board Action Requested
Take Appropriate Action

Item Presenter
Robert Outten, County Manager
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Juvenile Crime Prevention Council

Description
See Attached Summary

Board Action Requested
Take Appropriate Action

Item Presenter
Robert Outten, County Manager
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Dare County Waterways Commission

Description
See Attached Summary

Board Action Requested
Take Appropriate Action

Item Presenter
Robert Outten, County Manager
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May, 2023

DARE COUNTY WATERWAYS COMMISSION

(Two Year Term)

This commission promotes the Oregon Inlet Jetty Project, the Hatteras Inlet Project
and oversees County dredging projects and waterways related issues.

The terms of Michael Flynn, Kenneth “KP” Scott, Ill and Kermit W. Skinner, Jr.
expire in June.

Michael Flynn and KP Scott, lll have agreed to reappointment.

(Mr. Skinner’s position will remain vacant at this time, as applications are being reviewed.)

Other Members:
See attached list
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DARE COUNTY WATERWAYS COMMISSION

(Two Year Term)

This Commission promotes the Oregon Inlet Jetty Project, the Hatteras Inlet Project
and oversees County dredging projects and waterways related issues.

MEMBER

Danny Couch

P.O. Box 1001
Buxton, NC 27920
995-5671 (H)
216-7383 (Cell)

Ernie Foster

P.O. Box 120
Hatteras, NC 27943
986-2515 (H)

Michael Flynn

PO Box 276
Wanchese, NC 27981
609-462-4739 (H)
252-473-1607 (W)
michaelf@nccoast.org

Natalie Perry Kavanagh
P.O. Box 598

Frisco, NC 27936
252-996-0551 (H)
252-995-5366 (W)

nataliesusanperry@hotmail.com

Kenneth “KP” Scott IlI
P.O. Box 361
Hatteras, NC 27943
252-986-2877 (H)
252-986-2365
natandkp@icloud.com

Kermit W. Skinner, Jr.
166 Cannon Tralil
Manteo, NC 27954
252-305-5501 (H)
kermitl22@charter.net

Steve Coulter
P.O. Box 189
Hatteras, NC 27943
995-4832 (H)

NOTES:

TERM EXPIRATION

6-24

6-24

6-23

6-24

6-23

6-23

6-24

ACTION

Apptd.  1/17
Reapptd. 6/18; 6/20;
5/22

Apptd.  2/08

Reapptd. 6/08,10,12,14
6/16,18, 20,
5/22

Apptd. 3/19

Reapptd. 6/19, 7/21

Apptd. 6/18
Reapptd. 6/20, 5/22

Apptd.  7/21

Apptd.  7/19
Reapptd 7/21

Apptd.  3/16
Reapptd. 6/18; 6/20,
5/22

MEETING INFO: Monthly, odd months in Manteo, even months in Buxton.
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CONTACT INFO: Steve Coulter, Chairman
Barton Grover, DCWC Clerk
MEMBERS COMPENSATED: Members - $50 per meeting
Chairman - $75 per meeting

Robert Williams replaced Jim Bunch 6/91; Wayne Gray replaced John Blair 7/92.

Barry Martin replaced Harry Schiffman 6/93; Ephraim O’Neal replaced Chris Costenbader 6/94.
Floyd L. Basnight appointed to fill term of H.O. Golden 8/96.

Billy Carl Tillett replaced Wayne Gray 8/96.

Richard Johnson appointed to fill term of the late Robert Williams 1/97.

Moon Tillett appointed chairman 1/97; Ron Tillett appointed to fill term of Richard Perkins 4/97.
DCBC appointed Moon Tillett as Chairman, Glen Miller as Vice Chairman 6/97.

Michael Davenport replaced Barry Martin 6/98; Ervin Farrow Il replaced Glenn Miller 6/01.

Lee Tugwell filled term of Moon Tillett 10/04.

Warren Judge apptd. to fill term of Richard Johnson 6/05.

Allen Burrus apptd. to fill unexpired term of Warren Judge 1/07.

Robin Mann replaced Lee Tugwell and David May replaced Jerald Craddock 6/07.

Ernie Foster filled unexpired term of Ephraim O’Neal 2/08.

Jed Dixon replaced Robin Mann 12/11 (for term 6/11-6/13).

Jim Tobin filled unexpired term of Richard Johnson 6/13.

Danny Couch filled unexpired term of Jed Dixon 4/16; Holly White replaced Jim Tobin 6/16.
Ronald Lowe appointed to replace Holly White who moved out of area 8/16.

Dan Oden appointed to fill unexpired term of Arvin Midgett 8/16.

OIWC membership was reduced to 9 members 6/3/02 (consent agenda)

DCBC relinquished responsibility of appointing chairman and vice chairman to the OIWC
effective 9/17/02.

OIWC membership reduced to 7 members 6/03.

DCBC added another member (Steve Coulter) for a two year term ending 6/18. (3/16)
***Name changed to Dare County Waterways Commission 8/15/16***

At the DCBC meeting on 1/3/17, Commissioner Danny Couch was moved from the At Large seat
to the Commissioners seat. The At Large seat is vacant until a later appointment by the DCBC.
Chuck Earley was appointed to fill at large seat 6/17; Chuck Earley resigned 1/18

Natalie Perry Kavanagh replaced Ronald Lowe 6/18

Chairman Woodard noted that with the previous resignation of Charles Earley, the
Waterways Commission is how back to its proper composition of seven members 6/18

Michael Flynn filled unexpired term of David May who resigned 3/19

Kermit W. Skinner, Jr. appointed to fill unexpired term of Fletcher Willey who resigned 7/19
Kenneth “KP” Scott, Il appointed to replace Dan Oden 7/21

Danny Couch, Ernie Foster, Natalie Perry Kavanagh, & Steve Coulter were reappointed. 5/22

5/22
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Library Board - Dare

Description
See Attached Summary

Board Action Requested
Take Appropriate Action

Item Presenter
Robert Outten, County Manager
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Upcoming Board Appointments

Description

The Dare County Board of Commissioners welcomes citizen participation on its many Boards and Committees.
Following is a list of the Boards and Committees that have terms expiring during the next 3 months. The list
indicates when the item will be presented to the County Commissioners and any requirements that may pertain

to the appointment.

Instructions on how to obtain and submit an application are attached along with additional information about
each of the Boards and Committees with upcoming term appointments.

Board Action Requested

None

Item Presenter

Robert Outten, County Manager
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Upcoming Board & Committee Appointments

The Dare County Board of Commissioners welcomes citizen participation on advisory
boards and committees. This type of grassroots public involvement is the foundation of
democracy and a vital part of maintaining Dare County as a quality place to live.

Following is a list of Boards and Committees with terms expiring during the next three
months.

Information on how to obtain and submit applications follows the list.

There are also several boards with vacancies. Please check the website.

June, 2023 Hatteras Community Center Board — 3 terms expiring
Juvenile Crime Prevention Council — 12 terms expiring
Land Transfer Tax Appeals Board — 3 terms expiring
Library Board — Dare — 2 terms expiring
Manns Harbor Community Center Board — 3 terms expiring
Roanoke Island Community Center Board — 3 terms expiring
Transportation Advisory Board — 1 term expiring
Waterways Commission — 3 terms expiring

July, 2023
Airport Authority — 4 terms expiring
East Lake Community Center Board — 1 term expiring
Game and Wildlife Commission — 4 terms expiring
Wanchese Community Center Board — 5 terms expiring

August, 21023 A.B.C. Board — 2 terms expiring
Jury Commission — 1 term expiring
Virginia S. Tillett Community Center Advisory Board — 5 terms expiring

~~~~~Instructions for Obtaining and Submitting Applications~~~~~~~
An application must be submitted to the Clerk in order for your name to be considered for a
board or committee appointment. Applications are kept on file for three years.
The application form is available on the Dare County website
(Please see Board of Commissioners under Advisory Boards and Committees for link)

Cheryl C. Anby, Clerk to the Board at 252-475-5700
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Commissioners' Business & Manager's/Attorney's Business

Description

Remarks and items to be presented by Commissioners and the County Manager.

Board Action Requested

Consider items presented

Item Presenter
Robert Outten, County Manager
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